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AWARDS OF THE GROUP
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On 9 December 2021, the Group won the prize of “Annual IPO
with Most Brand Inﬂuence (FE&ERBENIPO) at the “Global
Investor Carnival 2021" held by Gelonghui by virtue of steady
comprehensive strength and brand influence.

On 16 December 2021, the Group won the prize of “ESG
Leading Demonstration Enterprise in the Real Estate Industry
in 2021 (2021 EHIEETTHEESGRAST AR )" by Hexun.com
for its accumulation and breakthroughs in green construction,
responsibilities and social welfare, corporate governance, etc.

On 16 November 2021, the Group won the honor of “Most Stable
Real Estate Company in China of 2021 (20214 & /1 Bl = 3 = fx
B AR])" in the 2021 China Real Estate Times Top 100
Forum” hosted by Guangdong Times Media Group by virtue of
its advantages in regional development and prudent investment.
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By virtue of our ability to break cycles, and based on our efforts in
deep regional development, prudent investment and advantages,
the Group won the title of “2021 Leading Enterprise in Brand
Reputation of CNR Q021 FERERMEEBEFEELLE) in
November 2021.

On 10 September 2021, the “2021 (4th) Leju Finance Annual Forum
and Finance Night (2021 (ZEUE) %EMEFERIBEN K
Z1R)" hosted by Leju Finance (%4/E2814¥) and guided by the
China Real Estate Association, the China Property Management
Association and the China Furniture & Decoration Chamber of
Commerce was held in Shanghai, the Group won the two awards
of “2021 Real Estate Industry Steady Operation Enterprise (2021
FEHEITERBRGE M) and “2021 Real Estate Innovative
Enterprise (2021 H E BI T S 1B %)

On 5 July 2021, the research results of the Regional Evaluation
of Chinese Real Estate Development Enterprises in East China
and Central China in 2021 Q021 P BIEHEMZEDEIER «
r & 15080 5F) released by Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research
Institution (/85 /ERFEMEMFFT) and China Real Estate
Appraisal Center (FF B # 2 AIFFH /L) showed that the Group
won the “Top 10 Chinese Real Estate Development Enterprises in

Fujian Province in 2021 (2021 B S ZE R B R EE 1098)".
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On 20 May 2021, the “4th China Real Estate Finance Forum in
2021" hosted by EH Consulting and Jiahe Jiaye and co-organized
by Gelonghui was held in Shenzhen. The Group was invited to
attend the forum, and awarded two honors, i.e., the 67th rank
among the “2021 Top 100 Listed Real Estate Enterprises in China
(20219 E EWEMAER)” and “2021 Top 10 Listed Real Estate
Enterprises in China for Growth and Development Capacity (2021
FE ET B RERERE11058)" by EH Consulting.

In late March 2021, the “2021 Guandian Annual Forum and Top
100 Chinese Real Estate Companies Award Ceremony” was hosted
by Guandian. The Group won the “2021 Top 10 New Listing
Performance in Chinese Real Estate Industry (20217 B B #0117
EHE FHRIBTOP10), further expanded the brand influence.

On 16 March 2021, the results of the 2021 Comprehensive Strength
Assessment for China Real Estate Developers TOP500 (20217
Bl B E F B 1 ¥ 4R A F S BIFFTOPS500)” jointly released by
the China Real Estate Association, Shanghai E-House Real Estate
Research Institute (=78 5 J& B EHZEPr) and China Real Estate
Appraisal Center showed that, the Group ranked 88th among the
2021 Top 100 Real Estate Enterprises in China for Comprehensive
Strength (20217 Bl E b & 3 (b 5454 B /1TOP100)” and 9th
among the “2021 TOP10 Stable Real Estate Developers in China
(20217 BE HER B X REELETOP10)"
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Datang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

MACRO INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

In 2021, benefiting from the gradual easing of the global COVID-19
pandemic and the widespread implementation of quantitative easing
stimulus policy, the world economy showed recovery growth. China
has achieved remarkable results in economic growth and pandemic
prevention and control, and the macro economy continued to stabilize
and improve. Throughout the year, the GDP increased by 8.1% year-on-
year, and the economic growth rate was at the forefront of the world'’s
major economies. In 2021, the real estate regulation policy continued
to stress on “residential properties are for living, not speculation”,
“localized policy” and “stabilizing land prices, stabilizing housing prices
and stabilizing expectations”, and ensured the smooth operation and

healthy development of the real estate market in long run.
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In the first half of the year, in response to the rapid recovery of the
macro economy and the effective control of the pandemic, the overall
performance of the real estate market was good, and the market heat
continued. The transactions in first-and second-tier cities were active with
volume and prices rising steadily. The third- and fourth-tier cities were
clearly differentiated, but prices were stable. From the second half of the
year, due to stricter real estate control policies, as well as the combined
influence of policy factors such as “Three Red Lines”, “loan concentration”
and “two-centralised land supply”, the industry has generally turned to
deleveraging in an all-round way; and due to debt default of certain
benchmark real estate enterprises, the overall market expectations have
declined, and the demands have gradually weakened. However, looking
at the performance of the real estate market throughout the year, the
overall sales and investment scale still maintained its growth. According
to data from the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the contracted
sales of commercial housing in China throughout the year amounted
to approximately RMB18.2 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 4.8%; the sales area of commercial housing was approximately 1.79
billion square meters, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.9%, which
shows that the real estate industry still plays a pillar role in the growth
of the national economy.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2021, the Group achieved revenue of approximately RMB11.25 billion,
representing an increase of 6.3% compared with the same period of
last year, with a gross profit margin of approximately 24.0%. The Group
achieved net profit of approximately RMB1.03 billion, representing an
increase of 8% compared with the same period of last year, of which,
the net profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB726 million. The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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ADEQUATE LAND RESERVE

In response to the changes in the way of centralized land transfer in
key cities during the year, on the one hand, the Group actively studied
the changes to the centralized land transfer policy and its impact; on
the other hand, we also adhered to the investment standard of giving
priority to cash flow indicators to efficiently replenish land reserves.
During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”), the
Group acquired land reserves with the total gross floor area (the “GFA")
of 6.08 million square metres (the “sq.m."), and entered into 3 new cities,
which further expanded the regional layout. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group had a total of 146 real estate projects at different development
stages in six major city clusters, with the total GFA of land bank of
approximately 23.71 million sg.m., prepared for the Group’s sustainable
and stable development in the coming year.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022

Since stabilizing economic growth remains one of the major objectives
of the Chinese government in its economy work, the Group expects that
China will implement proactive financial policies and steady and flexible
monetary policies, whilst maintaining rational and sufficient liquidity,
and continuously promoting the new development layout with mutual
advancement, so as to push ahead stable economic development.
Nevertheless, although the control of the pandemic achieved certain
results in the world, a possible repeat of the pandemic together with
the expectation for rising inflation and subsequent gradual withdraw
of quantitative easing policies by countries, and numerous geopolitical

factors will bring uncertainties to the global economic growth.
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Outlook for 2022, the Group will follow closely on the “14th Five-Year

Plan” development strategy of China, and continue to firmly implement
the strategy of “making the layout of urban agglomeration, taking
root in metropolitan area”. The Group will work to grasp the trending
opportunities in the new era of China’s real estate development and strive
to open up broader development room so as to further consolidate our
industry and market positions and realize sustained and steady business
growth. As the demand for first housing and improved housing will still
dominate the overall market, the Group anticipates that the Chinese
government would continue to increase land supply and optimize the
land collective transfer mechanism, which would lead to the overall
performance of the land market becoming more rational and guide
real estate enterprises into a development era of quality competition.
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Meanwhile, the Group will maintain good corporate governance,
continuously improve comprehensive management capabilities, and
enhance the construction of self-owned sales channels, to ensure the
achievement of annual sales target. Moreover, the Group will continue to
actively seek to promote the Company to achieve steady development
through introduction of strategic investors and platform resources, etc.
in order to build the Company into a high-quality listed company with
sustainable growth capabilities.

APPRECIATION

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to the board (the “Board”)
of directors of the Company (the “Directors”) for the strong leadership,
to all employees for their persistent efforts, and to the Shareholders,
customers and partners for their full trust and support in contributing
to the excellent performance and business development of the Group!

Datang Group Holdings Limited
Wu Di
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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REVIEW FOR 2021

In 2021, under the circumstances of the intertwined influence of
century-old changes and the pandemic of the century, real estate
developers in China has been facing unprecedented challenges.
Nevertheless, the annual sales of commercial housing in China
still exceeded RMB18 trillion, which showed that the real estate
market in China still had a certain degree of resilience in the face
of major crises. In the first half of 2021, the market was hot, and
land was in high demand in land auction market. In the second
half of the year, the impact of credit supervision showed, and the
land market turned cold. 2021 was the most up-and-down year
for the industry in nearly 20 years. The Group expects that the real
estate market will bottom out in the first and second quarters of
2022 and gradually recover in the third and fourth quarters. Under
the new situation and new challenges, we can only adhere to the
original intention, return to the essence of the enterprise, pay
attention to the quality of operation, and create value by putting
customers as the center.

Under the “Precision Work 2.0” system of the Group, there are 9
major types of work, 12 phases, 8 coordinations, 56 high standard
management processes, a total of more than 3,000 quality
checkpoints, covering the full-cycle construction process of our
projects. Before delivery, we regularly carry out site open days,
create model rooms for delivery and model rooms for work art
and process in order to allow customers to conduct “inspection”
in advance on the quality of the house. For sales commitments,
contract drawings, design changes, product defects, engineering
quality and other matters, we will carry on inspections to find out
differential risks. We will check 84 checkpoints from 15 dimensions
every week. During centralized delivery, we will record customer
requests for house repairs on a case-by-case basis, and request
our house repair team to address specific issues within 24 hours
to ensure the quality of delivery.
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In addition, the Group continued to strengthen the collection
of sales payments and the management of operating cash flow,
improve the coordination capability of domestic and overseas
funds, and enhance the efficiency of capital utilization. Besides,
the Group has maintained at least two fulfillments of the
“Three Red Lines”, and made full use of domestic and overseas
diversified financing channels. The Group continued to optimize
the liability structure, and did a good job in dynamic risk warning
and prevention. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total cash
and bank deposits amounted to approximately RMB5.51 billion,
showing sufficient liquidity.

1.  Real Estate Business

In 2021, the Group followed the geographical layout of
3+X, continued to focus on existing areas, and established
a relatively stable scale advantage in the two urban
agglomerations of the Haixi and Beibu Gulf. Meanwhile,
we seized the opportunity of relocating our headquarters
to Shanghai, and through various methods, expanded into
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new cities including Guangzhou, Nanjing and Nanchang,
and further improved our regional layout in the Yangtze
River Delta and other important urban metropolitan regions.

In 2021, the Group implemented a precise marketing
strategy, and strengthened the integration of online and
offline marketing methods. At the same time, the Group
accelerated the pace of development and achieved
rapid growth in contracted sales during the year, with
contracted sales reaching a new high. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group’s contracted sales (including the
contributions from projects of joint ventures and associates)
amounted to approximately RMB50.58 billion. The average
price of contracted sales was approximately RMB10,255 per
sg.m.
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Newly acquired land

In terms of the land market, 22 key cities in China (the
“PRC") have piloted “two centralized” management of land
for the first time, the purpose of which is to improve the
transparency of land supply, stabilize market expectations,
and reduce the premium of land sales, so as to achieve the
goal of stabilizing land prices, stabilizing housing prices
and stabilizing expectations. In 2021, through various land
acquisition methods such as public bidding, auction and
listing and joint ventures, a total of 24 high-quality land
parcels were obtained by the Group, with a total planned
GFA of 6.08 million sg.m.
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Land Bank 2. TR
As of 31 December 2021, the total GFA of the Group's HZE2021F12A318 - REB L EHR
land bank was approximately 23.71 million sq.m., among BEEBORINEBERK - HFER
which, the GFA of completed but undelivered properties TARRNMELNTZEF T K - HERED
was approximately 0.73 million sg.m., the rentable GFA for AAAEBEOIeEF K AEFYELY
investment was approximately 0.16 million sq.m., and the 22838 K o
GFA of properties under development was approximately
22.83 million sg.m.
Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear ~ Floor area Intended Use GFA investment development Total GFA the Group
H G A 1S
TEER AR RENTER RgnEg g

fesis  BR4E BRE  EHER R REMR REMR $ER ik rEERER

(square (square (square (square (square

meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(F5R) (F5%) (¥R (¥R (F5R)
Chengdu Bo Yue Royalty 3 373% Residential - - 106336 106336 3%
e it x %
Chengdu Chong Zhou Jin Xiu Royatty 004 397 Residential - - 19257 18257 50%
] SH5gtR i
Chengdu Qionglai Jiuyue Lanwan 03 68901 Residential - - 2134354 134354 40%
] Bikgiime f£
(hengdu Tianyue Royalty 03 58,065 Residential - - 192265 192,265 16%
] ARER £
(hengdu Yu Lan Royalty 04 40812 Residential - - 118801 118801 3%
] ) e ftE
Suining Suining Zhongliang No. 1 Yerd 0 4828) Residential - - 97,983 97983 3%
Yibin Jinke Town 2005 18459 Residental = 622310 622310 40%
E% £ %
Chongaing ~ Boyun Mansion m 63610 Residential - 140638 140638 30%
14 pie i i3
(hongging Feng Ling Wan Xiang 2004 67,121 Residential - 146,168 146,168 1%
14 BEER fiz
Chongging ~ Henlin Tianchen M 90075 Residential - 184867 184867 30%
£l #HAR £
Chongging ~~ Jiuzhu Tianchen M 136328 Residentia - 213187 13187 3%
1 WERR fz
Chongging LinXi Fu 03 127842 Residenial = L4677 677 0%
14 iR fiz
Chongging ~~ Xichen Yjing 0 170 Residential = = 87,144 87,144 3%
14 BixE% =
Chongging ~ Xiao Feng Jiang Nan (141) 2004 94061 Residential - 25290 25901 8
EL REILA() fiz
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EEEN Wk
E.
Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered  for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear  Floor area Intended Use GFA  investment development Total GFA the Group

L B4I i
Ed:3 1 A RENTER LR fgg

i . RRE  EHER Ri 2 0 RAER $ER i rRERE
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%) (PR (Fak) (¥ (FA%)
Chongging ~ Xiao Feng Jiang Nn (71) 03 47039 Residentia = 9521 9501 8
£l REIA) i
Guigang Guigang Chenguang 2004 30759 Residential - 168,78 168,782 3%
&t Ui i
Guigang (Guigang Dynasty Royalty 0 4054 Residential - 191,686 191,686 63%
1 RERELR £
Guigang Guigang Yating 04 4529 Residential - 178009 178009 6%
£t EiRE ftE
Kunming Dynasty Meiguan Royalty 2004 Sl Residential - - 183015 183015 61%
2 REXRRER 15
Liuzhou Dynasty Biyuan East Garden 204 4546 Residential - 165,141 165,141 100%
i AEEERR %
Liuzhou Dynasty Biyuan West Garden m 56,79 Residential - 195781 195781 98%
b AEERRR %
Liuzhou Liuzhou Dynasty Mansion 04 74989 Residential - 8N 80 51%
i RS fiz
Nanning Anji Dynasty Royalty N2 1196 Residenal - 147 14717 5%
g REREER %
Nanning Anji Dynasty Royatty Phase | 03 9170 Residential - 59710 59710 55%
HE REAEEZ_S %
Nenning Binjiang Jinwan 03 36039 Residential - = 178,165 178,165 100%
BE I i iz
Nanning (hengyang Royalty 005 20942 Residenial - - 947176 94776 0%
g HAER i
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Phase m 87,047 Parking BT - ILYE] 100%
HE AEHt=S &
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Xuhui Mansion 03 15404 Residentia - - 110686 110,686 51%
HE ARG HER iz
Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phase I il 19,141 Residential - - 181,04 181,094 100%
g RERG=H [z
Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phase | & 219 B0 Commercil 391 67,846 - 7807 100%
1 RERG- 28 EE:
Nanning Dynasty Tianyue Bl 830 Residentia = 132977 132977 56%
BE RERHR fiz
Nanning Dynasty Zhenguan M 4558 Residential - - 214678 214678 85%

HE RERE i3
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Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered  for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear ~ Floor area Intended Use GFA  investment development Total GFA the Group

L B4I i
Ed:3 1 A RENTER LR fgg

i T E RRE  EHER i3 RAER RAER SR i rRERE
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%) (F2%) (¥ (¥ (FA%)
Nanning Dynasty Zhongnan Ziyun Impression 2005 50128 Residentia = = 178071 18071 2%
e REDEZENR i
Nanning Jnjlu Royalty 02 68401 Residential = 37604 37604 %
e L i
Nanning Nanning Jinxiu Royalty 03 23565 Residential - 98,189 98,189 56%
HE BERRLR i3
Nanning Shenghu Yuejing M 90929 Residential - - 31918 30918 6%
e BikE £
Nanning Shengshi Chunjiang 005 STT4 Residential - - AR M08 17
Mg BHEL f£
Nanning Shengshi Jinyue N2 2565 Residental - 103,582 103582 1
e Htth i3
Nanning Tanfu Impression m 137811 Residential 41416 - 393726 3518 30%
e % i3
Nanning Wudang BMA Center 005 60,744 Commercil = = 262409 282409 10%
g D5EERD EE
Nanning Wudiang Dynasty Royalty 03 29136 Residential - - 133,140 133,140 85%
g DRREER i
Nanning Wuriang Huguang Institution 04 65,007 Residentia = 328390 3283% 1%
HE DRHRER iz
Nanning Wuxiang Lanting Mansion 03 159991 Residenial = = 903879 903879 3%
HE it Ui fiz
Nanning Xian Royalty 03 2949 Residential = = 139707 139,707 17%
g BFtX £
Nanning Xingning Dynasty Impression bl 95750 Parking %543 = %543 4
BE REREHR &
Nanning Yango Dynasty Royalty 03 34 Residentia - 204193 204193 4%
HE BRAAELER =
Nanning Yango Dynasty Tanjing 2004 177954 Residentia - - 86669 866,659 4%
HE BRSAEER fiz
Nanning [mpression Discovery Bay 02 111,138 Residential - 614237 614237 17%
HE H56%E £
Nanning Yunxita 02 20014 Residentia = 69,155 69155 1%
BE 285 [
Nanning Zhenyuan 2006 91849 Residentil = = 47748 487,748 3%

HE 58 iz
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Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered  for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear  Floor area Intended Use GFA  investment development Total GFA the Group

L B4I i
Ed:3 1 A RENTER LR fgg

i . BRE  EHER Ri 2 0 REAR $ER i rRERE
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(F5R) (F5%) (¥ %) (¥ %) (F5R)
Nanning Goug Yuan Yue 2004 571875 Residentia = 283,165 283,165 100%
e DR i
Fuzhou (DC Dynasty Yang Yun 03 26007 Residential - - 86,089 88689 4%
#h RIAERZ iz
Fuzhou Longjiang Jiujin Paviion 03 113059 Residential - - 33011 3301 3%
i RIIBE £
Fuzhou Pukou Dynasty Royalty M 15,954 Residential - - 53597 53507 80%
i ROAELR £
Fuzhou fu Rong Impression 03 2583 Residential - - 86317 86317 60%
i 1#% £
Longyan Royalty Wangyue Garden 03 7903 Residential - - 1013% 1013% 18%
iE EXEMIE %
Longyan Royalty Wenyuan m 26197 Residential - - 79864 79864 3%
H Lyl i3
Longyan Zhiyuan FeiCul Jun 03 17813 Residential - - 52909 52909 0%
3 HEZE fiz
Nanchang Shan Hu Yin N4 41849 Residenal - - 136907 136,907 62%
B8 LD %
Ningde Ningde Dynasty Royalty 005 19409 Residential - - 55332 55332 55%
B EEARER %
Ningde Yinghai Shidai 04 45135 Residential - - 144617 144617 30%
B EigRR fiz
Putian Hu Xin Mansion 03 381 Residentia - - 109499 109499 100%
i itk il £
Putan Putian Xiuyu Dynasty Royalty 3 83197 Residential - - 293915 253915 3%
B ERARKELR £
Putian Putian Yuhu Impression 04 41858 Residential - - 149728 14978 65%
A FREHER iz
Putian Yuexiu Royatty 03 53647 Residential - - 151,840 151840 4%
i WAtR [z
Quanzhou Hufan Julong Guofeng 004 100427 Residential - - 20817 280817 10%
B4 BLRRAR iz
Quanzhou Jnjiang Dynasty Mansion 03 66,781 Residentia - - 21763 21763 60%
5 BILAER £
Quanzhou Shimao Yuncheng 2004 89,544 Residential - - 346,55 346,55 15%

M L] i3
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Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered  for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear ~ Floor area Intended Use GFA  investment development Total GFA the Group

L B4I i
Ed:3 1 A RENTER LR fgg

s R4 BRE  EHER Ri 2 0 REAR $ER i rRERE
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(F5R) (F5%) (¥ %) (¥ %) (F5R)
Sanming Shadan Yunzhu 003 53688 Residential - - 13361 123361 40%
% VEEE i
Yiamen Dynasty Hotel M 16850 Commercia - - 64320 64320 100%
i AERE S
Kiamen Tong'an Shuiyunjfan 01 15000 Parking 30067 = = 30067 100%
Eff A% KER &
hangzhou ~ Dynasty Jinkiu Royalty m 8278 Parking 1154 - - 1154 0%
B AEREER Bl
Zhangzhou ~ Dynasty Sanmu Impression West Lake 03 17659 Residential - - 69,115 69,115 4%
B RE=RASES fiz
Zhangzhou — Jangshan Tianjing N2 21381 Parking 31844 - 3184 30%
2 RS &l
Zhangzhou  Jizomei Dynasty Royalty 3 41558 Residential - - 17295 17295 67%
B BEAEER %
Zhangzhou  Jizomei Dynasty Impression 03 15748 Residential - - 45713 45713 30%
i AERER fiz
Thangzhou ~ Tianlai Town Phase | 04 73607 Residential - 91444 91444 0%
i py Ui fiz
Zhangzhou ~ Yango Dynasty Feli Impression 204 83810 Residentia - - 26134 261314 50%
B BRIAESEDR fiz
Zhangzhou ~ Zhangzhou Dynasty Chunfengli 01 6189 Parking 34620 - 34620 60%
Phase |
Bl ENRERRE_ % &l
Yueyang Yunyang Dynasty Royatty Phases 03 124891 Residential - 0507 507 100%
&V
i ERARtZORS fi£
Yueyang Yunyang Dynasty Royatty Phases 03 122085 Residential 15417 304216 339633 100%
L&l
& ERAEER -2 s
(hangsha Dynasty Impression-Yuyi m 81362 Residential - - 189,855 189855 100%
&b REHS . 08 fiz
(Changsha Hantang Royalty 03 240003 Residentia - 610257 610257 4%
&b 2Bt iz
(hangsha Hanlin Mansion 204 143193 Residential - 438254 438254 17%

R Hitfs i3
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Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered  for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear  Floor area Intended Use GFA  investment development Total GFA the Group

L B4I i
Ed:3 1 A RENTER LR fgg

i . RRE  EHER Ri 2 0 RAER $ER i rRERE
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%) (PR (Fak) (¥ (FA%)
Guangzhou  Tianyu Datang Project 2005 497200 Residentia = 2154000 2154000 0%
i REAEER i
Yiamen Datang Center 2004 93,166 Commercia - 38131 11918 66,049 100%
B AERD S
Tianjin Tangsheng Yayuan 0 198873 Residential - 341140 341140 100%
R ERER £
Tenjin Tangi Yayuan 0 3560 Residential - - 134849 134849 100%
RE BB £
Tianjin Tangyun Yayuan 2004 97911 Residential - - 301638 301638 100%
x4 BBl f£
Tianjin Vision Commercial Square A3 74080 Commercal 31 - 17,17 120238 30%
S ERERRA E
Changzhou ~ Shangyue Graden m 53338 Residential - - 140,126 140,126 51%
& HieE i3
Changzhou ~ Yuhu Shangguan Garden bl 580%3 Residential - - 138699 138699 40%
Bl AR fiz
Fuyang Yunjing N4 79519 Residenal - - 1734 1734 3%
&R £ %
Jangyin Lanyue Yayuan 03 411 Residential = = 130519 130519 3%
It Rl %
Nenjing Mingwiangfu 03 1534 Residential - = 5254 52544 3%
BR 2R it
Nantong Langyuan 2004 980 Residential - - 99838 99838 0%
i HE £
Nantong Yuehuyuan 0 60240 Residentia - 97778 97778 55%
] HHE £
Nantong Yunchensinyuan 03 73942 Residentia - - 185434 185434 0%
i SR fi£
Taichang Huayu Jing An Yayuan 2004 41329 Residential - - 115384 115,384 0%
Y] BRI fiz
Zhangjiagang  Dongtangchunxiao Garden 004 4459 Residential - - 130974 130974 3%
Fe REERIE iz
Ningbo Chenyue Royalty 0 38013 Residentia - - 113,151 113151 51%

R Riitx i3
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Rentable
City where Completed but GFA held Total Percentage of
the project is Primary  undelivered  for property GFA under interest owned by
located Project name Completionyear ~ Floor area Intended Use GFA  investment development Total GFA the Group

L B4I i
Ed:3 1 A RENTER LR fgg

s R4 BRE  EHER R 2 0 REAR $ER ik rEER
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(F5R) (F5%) (¥ %) (¥ %) (F5R)
Ningbo Fel Heming 2004 74965 Residential = = 26415 216415 4%
Ef BER i
Ningbo Feng Lan Di M U7 Residential - - 61885 61,885 3%
= BRE =z
Ningbo Juyuci County 03 4951 Residential = = 120238 120238 40%
B AEED s
Ningbo Jiuyun Mansion 03 31 Residential - - 87215 87215 12%
= £fi i3
Ningbo QiYueli 03 20388 Residential - - 39218 39218 100%
= e s
Taizhou (Chuangshi Mingdi N2 30862 Residental - - 101629 101629 %
AN gttt i
Taizhou Nanquan Impression 03 16048 Residential - - 41807 41807 86%
A AR £
Wenzhou Cuican Tianrui 204 4634 Residential - - 121,305 121305 40%
i o8 fiz
Wenzhou Xingyue Mingzhu 03 26686 Residenal - - 84,154 84,154 3%
il Eff#g iz
Others N/A 37283 53834 170402 597,070 N/A
B2 vt Qi
Tota 12735 159811 2806738 B384

it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investment and Operation of Commercial Properties

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved rental
income of approximately RMB91.1 million, representing an
increase of 61.5% compared to the same period of last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the additional
rent from commercial space of Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng
Phases | & II. The Group has 8 commercial properties projects
mainly located in Xiamen, Fujian and Nanning, Guangxi
respectively.

Hotel Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved sales
revenue from hotel operation business of approximately
RMB54.5 million, representing an increase of 13.8%
compared to the same period of last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the improvement of performance
of Xiamen Dynasty Ginlan Jia Hotel and Nanning Dynasty
Congyue Hotel.

As of the date of this report, the Group has two hotels in
operation, namely Xiamen Dynasty Ginlan Jia Hotel and
Nanning Dynasty Congyue Hotel.

Il. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately RMB11,254.2 million,
representing an increase of 6.3% from approximately
RMB10,588.4 million for the corresponding period last
year. The revenue mainly included income generated
from property sales, commercial property investment and
operations and hotel operations. The increase in revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is primarily due to the
increase in delivery of projects during the Reporting Period.
In particular, revenue from (i) property sales amounted
to approximately RMB10,653.1 million, representing an
increase of 5.4% as compared with the corresponding
period last year, and contributed 94.7% of the total revenue
recognised; (i) provision of construction services amounted
to approximately RMB208.3 million, representing a decrease
of 13.9% as compared with the corresponding period last
year; (iii) commercial property investment and operations
amounted to approximately RMB91.1 million, representing
an increase of 61.5% as compared with the corresponding
period last year; and (iv) hotel operations amounted to
approximately RMB54.5 million, representing an increase of
14.0% as compared with the corresponding period last year.

EEENWR D

r
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BEVNEREREZ

RBMERR - AEREERASWANAR
¥o1 A& - M EFREREMN61.5% ©
ENEBHREERNERAE — B R _HE
¥mEMSHSIEERTH - A5EE
BoEmENERE  ETBLERBRER
MEAEE -

HIEEE

RBMEHR  AEBEEIREEE L X5
EWANARES4SHETT @ L EFF
HAMEAN13.8% BN EBHNEMARNES
WHEMEEAEENEERAB NS
RAEBFTE ©

BEARSEY  AKECHEMECH
FBE  DRREPFIAERBEEREE
REZUEE -

— - MK ERE
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HZE2021F12831BILFE » KEBRA
HARB112542BE T » REFR L
BAR1058848 & T M63% ° WA
REXEDREVENE BEDERER
KRB EEERAE - HZ=2021F128
31HEFEMNRAEINEZZHAR RS
NIBERNSEMATE - Hb - ()WEH
ERMBRAREFREIGINSA%ELAR
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3.

4.

5.

6.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's cost of
sales amounted to approximately RMB8,555.0 million. The
increase was mainly due to the increased number of projects
delivered during the Reporting Period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross
profit was approximately RMB2,699.2 million, representing
an increase of 0.1% from approximately RMB2,695.9 million
for the corresponding period of 2020. Such increase was
primarily attributable to the increased number of projects
delivered during the Reporting Period. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the gross profit margin was 24.0%, while
the gross profit margin was 25.5% for the corresponding
period of 2020, which remained stable relatively.

Selling and Marketing Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's selling
and marketing costs amounted to approximately RMB528.9
million, representing an increase of 9.6% from approximately
RMB482.7 million for the corresponding period last year.
Such increase was due to the launch of new property
projects of the Group for presale in 2021.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB705.7 million, representing an increase of 35.1% from
approximately RMB522.2 million for the corresponding
period last year. Such increase was mainly due to the
increased number of employees resulted from the Group's
business expansion.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures and Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's share
of profits of joint ventures and associates amounted to
approximately RMB136.2 million, representing an increase of
RMB181.9 million from the share of losses of joint ventures
and associates of approximately RMB45.7 million for the
corresponding period last year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the carry-forward of profits from several
cooperation projects during the Reporting Period.

THER A
AREBREZ2021F12831 8 L FE R
ERARLAANREESSS50B BT 0 IR
HEZAREHAIMNBEELZ A -
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RNEBREE2021F12831BIEFEHNE
B AR 269928 ETT  BH20205F
FEHNRARE2695.08 & T HN0.1% -
EMREAXZEARREHARNIEE L LA
B oo HE2021F12A31B IEFENEF =R
#24.0% - 20205 R BAAN &25.5% - EF =
RIFEHIBTE ©

HEREHBAX
HE2021F12A31BLEFE - AEEHEE
NEERAY A ARES8IBET @ BE
FRHOBAREA827HETTIEIN0.6%
SR SRR AEER 2021 FHHFTDE
BEAHTBETER -

THFEX
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BB ARE7057BET @ RWEFERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's net
finance costs amounted to approximately RMB48.1
million, representing an increase of RMB28.5 million from
approximately RMB19.6 million for the corresponding period
last year. Such increase was attributable to the increase in
interest expenses due to the increase in borrowings.

Income Tax Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's income
tax expenses amounted to approximately RMB682.7 million,
representing a decrease of 10.8% from approximately
RMB765.7 million for the corresponding period last year.
The Group’s income tax expenses included the provision for
the corporate income tax and land appreciation tax during
the Reporting Period. The decrease in income tax for the
Reporting Period was mainly due to the decrease in the
Group's land appreciation tax.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the aforementioned factors, the Group's profit
before tax decreased by 0.4% to approximately RMB1,708.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB1,715.7 million for the corresponding
period last year. The Group's net profit increased by 8%
to approximately RMB1,025.8 million, of which profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB726.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 increased from approximately RMB715.4
million for the corresponding period last year.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and the majority
of the Group’s transactions were denominated and settled
in RMB. Except for certain assets denominated and settled
in USD and HKS held by the Group, and senior notes
denominated in USD, the Group has no other significant risks
related to foreign exchange fluctuations. The management
will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure,
and take prudent measures to reduce foreign currency risk.
The Company does not engage in any hedging activities in
relation to the foreign currency risk.

10.
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Ill. LIQUIDITY, FINANCE AND CAPITAL

1

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group'’s cash and bank deposit
balances were approximately RMB5.51 billion (31 December
2020: approximately RMB5.66 billion), of which, restricted
cash balances amounted to approximately RMB1.20 billion
(31 December 2020: RMB2.20 billion).

Borrowings and Pledged Assets

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total indebtedness,
including interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities,
amounted to approximately RMB109.1 billion (31 December
2020; approximately RMB104.6 billion), of which RMB76.7
billion bears fixed interest rates.

= RBEE - UBREXR

1.

WEAR
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BEENRRAN

1%

The following table sets forth the components of the Group's TREFIIAATABRASENEEREK -
indebtedness as at the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)

(AR%TR) (AR®BTT)

Non-current FERED

Bank borrowings — secured/qguaranteed RITER—BEAER 6,162,561 6,439,838

Other borrowings — secured/quaranteed HA B3R — B ER 2,701,700 3,459,300

Lease liabilities HE&E 120,824 133,954
8,985,085 10,033,092

Less: current portion of non-current

borrowings B FERNERE A BN ER SR & (1,901,725) (2,251,675)

7,083,360 7,647,463

Current T ED

Bank borrowings — secured/quaranteed IRITIER — B R - 100,000

Senior notes BEER 1,915,906 =

Other borrowings — secured/guaranteed HihfER—HHER R - 315,000

Current portion of non-current borrowings JERNEAE SRR B A EB & 1,901,725 2,251,675

Lease liabilities HE&E 12,207 9,256
3,829,838 2,675,931

Total indebtedness wmas 10,913,198 10,457,348

Note: fgsE -

(1) Other borrowings include financing arrangement with trust ) HtEReFEEREAR  EEBTER

companies, asset management companies, other financial A - Hth S R EME = a0
institutions and other third party companies. BRH -
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The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the

Group's bank and other borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TREHIRAR B BARERIT R EAME
B HIER -

As of 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(ARET ) (ANRETT)
Within 1 year TELAR 3,829,838 2,675,276
Between 1 and 2 years 1824 4,244,218 4,324,355
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 2,306,407 3,178,144
Over 5 years SEFELAE 532,735 279,573
Total et 10,913,198 10,457,348

Pledge of assets BEERH

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's bank and
other borrowings are secured by the pledges of the Group's
assets with carrying value of approximately RMB15,403
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB12,193
million) which include (i) property, plant and equipment; (i)
right-of-use assets; (iii) investment properties; (iv) properties
under development; and (v) completed properties held for
sale.

HZE2021F 128318 » REBLORITR
HEZAREEENABARKI54038E T
(2020%F12A318 : HARE1219365ET)
ZEEEER  HPBE: 0VWE - BE

HfE (VEFREEE  (INREWE  (v)
RERYE: ROFEFEZERIME -
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio
(total indebtedness less cash and bank balances divided
by total equity) was approximately 53.0%, as compared
to approximately 60.6% as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio (total debts divided
by total assets) was approximately 83.3%, as compared to
approximately 83.2% as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2021, the Group's debt-to-asset ratio excluding
advances from customers (total debt excluding contract
liabilities divided by total assets excluding contract liabilities)
was approximately 76.1%, as compared to approximately
77.7% on 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group's current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was approximately 1.23 times, as compared to
approximately 1.28 times as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2021, cash to short-term debt ratio of the Group
(unrestricted cash and bank balances divided by short-term
borrowings) was approximately 1.13 times, as compared to
approximately 1.30 times as at 31 December 2020.

Capital Commitment

As of 31 December 2021, the Group's contracted but
unprovided commitment payments for non-current assets
were approximately RMB20 million (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB40 million).

EEENWR D
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AEENFEAR(RBERE & RIRTT
RERRBR LARR AN 25 48 5 ) A 2021 5F 12 A 31
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5. Contingent Liabilities

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, the banks require the
Group to provide guarantees to the purchasers in respect of
their mortgage loans. Such mortgage guarantees provided
to the purchasers are usually released when the title deeds
of the respective properties are pledged to the banks as
security to continue to support the mortgage loans, which
generally take place after the delivery of relevant properties
to the purchasers. If the purchasers are in default on their
mortgage loans, the Group shall be liable to the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principal amount together
with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulting purchasers to the banks and the Group shall be
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees of
approximately RMB12.82 billion to certain banks in respect
of the mortgage loans granted to certain purchasers of the
Group's properties (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
RMB12.08 billion).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees
of approximately RMB3.75 billion to related companies
(as at 31 December 2020: approximately RMB3.77 billion).
These related companies are not controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder as defined in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed in this
report, the Group had no other significant contingency
liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2021.

TRER

RBREBEH  RITBRAEERERK
RBRERREHRER - HEERIRIBERE
FHEMSEAMENEEZSEHTRITN
HEEFRZBENRRE (BENERY RN
TERR)#R - WERERRBER
AREEAREEER T ZIRIBAEER
R 2B RSRITZ BT EREE
RASEERZENBYRAEERER
PREHE -

2021124318 * NEEB[AB TRT
EHESBEHARBI22BITHER © £
ARTHPERBEAEEMEZIRBE
FHER(R2020F12A8318 » HARE
1208187T) °

R20218F 128318 - REE R QA RRE
HA B ARE37SEBIT 2 PR (R 2020912
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AN IF R A AR P AR AR R (4R & B 7 3R B =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IV. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION

1.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments
or Capital Assets

On 8July 2021, Zhangzhou Tanglin Real Estate Development
Limited CEMEMEHERZEBR Q)

(“Zhangzhou Tanglin”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary

Company

of the Company) as the subscriber, Nanning Tianyu Yujun
Investment Co, Ltd*. ([ R EBEZIEE B A F)) (‘Tianyu
Yujun”) as the vendor and Nanning Tianyu Jurong Realty
Company Limited* (FAZRBE LB ZEBMR A A) (‘Tanyu
Jurong”) as the target company entered into the capital
increase agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”),
pursuant to which, Zhangzhou Tanglin agreed to acquire
20% of the equity interests of Tianyu Jurong by way of
capital contribution of RMB605,930,000 to Tianyu Jurong
(the "Acquisition”). Upon completion of the transaction,
each of Zhangzhou Tanglin and Tianyu Yujun will own 20%
and 80% of the entire equity interests of Tianyu Jurong,
respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 9 July 2021.
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On 30 September 2021, Tianyu Jurong, Chongging Hesheng
Property Development Co, Ltd. (EEXEEHEREA
R 2 A]) (“Chongging Hesheng”), Chongqging Tangcheng
Property Development Co,, Ltd. (EEEREMERES
[R/AA]) (“Chongging Tangcheng”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Chongging Zhiyuan
Property Co., Ltd. (BEE 2 &hZEHR A A]) (“Chongging
Zhiyuan”) entered into a co-operative development
agreement, pursuant to which, Chongging Hesheng agreed
to increase its capital contribution in Chongqging Zhiyuan
from RMB20,820,000 to RMB60,000,000 and Chongging
Tangcheng agreed to make a capital contribution of
RMB20,000,000 to Chongging Zhiyuan. Since the capital
injection will result in the dilution of shareholding of Tianyu
Jurong in Chongging Zhiyuan, Chongging Tangcheng
agreed to pay Tianyu Jurong an amount of RMB84,778,000
as the consideration. After the completion of the capital
injection, the registered and paid up capital of Chongging
Zhiyuan will be increased to RMB100,000,000 and will be
held by Tianyu Jurong, Chongging Hesheng and Chongging
Tangcheng as to 20%, 60% and 20%, respectively. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
30 September 2021.

Save as disclose above, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, nor was there any
plan authorized by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets as at 31 December 2021.

M2021%F9H30H - REEH - EEFZE
BHEREERAR(EEZE] EF
EAEMERAZEARAR(EEER]) (K
NEIZEEL2EMB AR ) BEE 2 iR
EAERAR(TEEZR DIV AERER
®BYE EERRREBEHEECE
7 & B AR B 20820000 TG E A R
60,000,0007C * MEEEARERERE 2R
& AR E20,000,0007T - ARVEE B S E
RAEBEXFBNEEZERESRSE &
BEEARENRBEXRIN—E£BAA
R #84,778000 T W) RIBIERRE - I
BREME  BEEZEZEMREZERS
#E AR#100,0000007C © W EBHXEE
% EERBRREEEEADAFA20%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,709 employees
(31 December 2020: 2,592 employees). For the year ended
31 December 2021, the staff cost recognised as expenses
of the Group amounted to RMB490.4 million (31 December
2020: RMB425.4 million). The remuneration of the employees
of the Group is mainly determined based on the prevailing
market level of remuneration and the individual performance
and work experience of the employees. Bonuses are also
distributed based on the performance of the employees.
The Group provides employees with career development
opportunities and considers if their remuneration should
be raised or if they should be promoted with reference to
their individual performance and potential. Other benefits
provided by the Group include medical benefits and
specialised training. There was no shareholder who waived
or agreed to waive any dividend arrangement.

Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering (the
“IPO") and the Partial Exercise of the Over-allotment
Option

The Company’s net proceeds from the global offering are
approximately HK$1.49 billion. On 31 December 2020, ICBC
International Capital Limited, the sponsor of the IPO of the
Company, partially exercised the over-allotment option in
connection with the Company’s global offering. Accordingly,
the Company has allotted and issued 30,144,000 additional
shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) at price of HK$4.56
per Share (for details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 4 January 2021). The net proceeds
from the partial exercise of the over-allotment option were
approximately HK$135 million. As of the date of this report,
the Company has applied the balance of proceeds raised
from the global offering and the balance of proceeds
from the partial exercise of such over-allotment option in
accordance with the proposed applications as disclosed in
the prospectus of the Company dated 27 November 2020.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the actual

utilization of net proceeds as at 31 December 2021:

TREHEZE2021F12A31 B IEFABRIE
SFENERSRB R

Net proceeds

from the

Unutilized partial exercise
amount as of of the over-

Actual

Unutilized

amount as of

Net proceeds 31 December allotment utilized during 31 December
Usage from the IPO 2020 option the period 2021
BRRE  HE2020F BafE B2 F
BERE 128318 BEERRE REHE 124318
ik REFE  ABASE EREFE  AERER  ABALE
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
A¥EEL  B¥EEnr  BWAER  BWARER B¥AER

Construction costs of existing property B AYE£F%IEEHEERA
development projects 951 - 116 116 -

Repayment of part of existing interest- BEHLABABBTER

bearing bank borrowings 384 239 - 239 -
General working capital —HEEES 158 = 19 19 =
Total @it 1493 239 135 374 =

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Any of the

Company'’s Listed Securities

Except for disclosed in this report, during the year ended

31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.

Currency Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and the majority of

the Group's transactions were denominated and settled in

RMB. The Group was not subject to any material risk directly

relating to foreign exchange fluctuation. The management

will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure,

and take prudent measure to reduce foreign exchange risks.

The Company does not engage in any hedging activities in

relation to the foreign currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to implementing high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
enhance the corporate value as well as the responsibility
commitments. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) as the code of corporate governance.

To the knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied
with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
for the year ended 31 December 2021, and the Directors will
use their best endeavors to procure the Group to continue
to comply with the CG Code.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company is
proposed to be held on 13 June 2022 via physical meeting
or e-Meeting System.

Closure of Register of Members

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 7 June 2022 to 13 June 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
All transfer documents of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 6 June 2022.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report for the year ended
31 December 2021.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands companies law
on 14 December 2018. Shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 December
2020 (the “Listing Date”).

MAIN BUSINESS

The Groupis a property developer in China focusing on the development
of residential and commercial properties. Headquartered in Shanghai, the
Group has expanded its business into key regions in China, including the
Western Taiwan Strait Economic Region, Beibu Gulf Economic Region,
Yangtze River Delta Economic Region and Chengdu-Chongging Region

and other key cities along the Yangtze River.

Details of the main business of the key subsidiaries of the Group are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
this annual report. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the nature
of the main business of the Group has no significant changes. As of the
date of this annual report, the Board has no intention to significantly
change the main business of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the
Group in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review and future business development are set
out in the sections headed "Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY THE
GROUP

Our operations involve certain risks, some of which are beyond our
control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i) risks relating to
our business, (ii) risks relating to the real estate industry, and (iii) risks
relating to doing business in China.

Some of the risks generally associated with our business and industry
include the following:

we are susceptible to adverse movements in the PRC real estate
market, particularly in regions and cities where we have property
development projects.

ii. we are vulnerable to adverse changes in economic, political and

social conditions and government policies in China.

iil. we may not have adequate financing to fund our property
development projects, and capital sources may not be available

on favorable terms, or at all.

iv. we rely on contractors during the construction and development
stages of our property development projects, who may not

perform in accordance with our expectations.

V. we may fail to protect our intellectual property rights, which may
materially and adversely affect our brand value.

For further details on the major risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” on pages 37
to 77 of the Company's prospectus dated 27 November 2020 (the
"Prospectus”).
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SOCIAL,HEALTH AND WORKSAFETY,ENVIRONMENTAL
MATTERS, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND COMPLIANCE

Social, Health and Work Safety

In respect of social responsibilities, in particular health, work safety and
social insurance, we have entered into employment contracts with our
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations.
We maintain social welfare insurance for our full-time employees in
the PRC, including pension insurance, medical insurance, occupational
injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance, in
accordance with relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Our Employee’s Administrative Measures ( { 8 TEI2##/X) ) contain
policies and procedures regarding work safety and occupational health
issues. We provide our employees with necessary safety training, and our
construction sites are equipped with safety equipment including gloves,
boots and hats. Our human resources department and administrative
department are responsible for recording and handling work accidents
as well as maintaining health and work safety compliance records.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, we did not encounter any
material safety accident, there were no material claims for personal or
property damages, and no compensation was paid to employees in
respect of claims for personal or property damages related to safety
accident.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to a number of environmental and safety laws and
regulations in the PRC including the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {2 A R EFBIRIFIREE) ), the
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (R ZE A RFEFEIRIFRE S AFIA/E) ), the Environmental
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {FZE A
REAMBIRIFFEFTHEL) ) and the Administrative Regulations on
Environmental Protection for Development Projects ( %8 B IRIRE

REETZ D) ).
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Pursuant to these laws and regulations, depending on the impact of
the project on the environment, an environmental impact study report,
an environmental impact analysis table or an environmental impact
registration form shall be submitted by a developer before the relevant
authorities grant approval for the commencement of construction
of the property development. In addition, upon completion of the
property development, the relevant environmental authorities and the
construction unit will also inspect the property to ensure compliance
with the applicable environmental standards and regulations before the
property can be delivered to the purchasers.

Forthe year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not encounter any
major issues in the process of completing the real estate development
project and passing the inspection and acceptance of the relevant
environmental agencies. The Group has also not been subject to
significant fines or penalties for violating the environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC.

Inaccordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 thereto,
the Company's environmental, social and governance report will be
available on our website and on the Stock Exchange's website in due

course.

Legal Proceedings and Compliance

We have been involved in legal proceedings or disputes in the ordinary
course of business, including, but not limited to, claims relating to
disputes with our suppliers and disputes arising from property purchase
agreements with our customers. Please refer to “Risk Factors — Risks
Relating to Our Business — We may be involved in claims, disputes,
legal proceedings and negative publicity, which may adversely affect
our financial condition, divert management attention and harm our

reputation” in the Prospectus.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, we were not involved in any
litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings, claims or disputes
which had a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results
of operation.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

For the businesses and industries in which the Group operates, the most
important laws and regulations in the PRC include (but not limited to)
laws related to the establishment of real estate development enterprises,
acquisition of land use rights, property development, commercial
housing sales or pre-sales, and environmental protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, we complied with all the
relevant and applicable PRC laws and regulations governing the business
of property development and management in all material respects, and
we had obtained all material licenses, permits and certificates for the
purpose of operating our business.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has no non-compliance
incident that have had a material adverse effect on the Company.

Financial Summary

The summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 are
set out on page 276 of this annual report.

Final Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed

securities.

Permitted Indemnity and Insurance Provisions

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
liability, action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out his/her functions.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has arranged
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of legal
action against Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers
The Group primarily target individuals and companies of residential
properties and tenants of investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five largest customers and
the largest customer of the Group accounted for 17.23% and 9.73% of
the revenue of the Group which fall under 30% of the revenue of the
Group, respectively, and all of them are independent third parties to us.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder who owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest in
any of the five largest customers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five largest suppliers of the
Group, primarily comprising construction contractors, accounted for
32% of the total purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for 11% of the total purchases of the Group. All
of the five largest suppliers are all construction companies engaged by
the Group and all of them are independent third parties to the Group.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder who owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest
in any of the five largest suppliers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to corporate sustainability and is keen on developing long-term
relationships with stakeholders.

We consider our employees as key contributors to our growth and that
our success and ability to maintain our competitiveness depend on the
well-being, performance and skills of our staff. For example, we offer
leadership training programs to our mid-level and senior management
and we sponsor selected employees to attend EMBA program at
Xiamen University. We also provide regular training programs, such as
the Seal Training Program (%35 3I5TEl) for entry-level employees,
Star Training Program (28 F153I51El) for our entry-to-mid-level
employees with outstanding work performance personnel and Dynasty
Iron Army Program (KJ/E#I %) for sales and marketing.

The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promoting diversity
development to our staff, providing competitive remuneration and
benefits and career development opportunities based on their merits and
performance. The Group also puts on-going efforts to provide adequate
trainings and development resources to the employees so that they can
keep abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry,
and improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.
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The Company understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers. The Group has established procedures
in place for handling customers’ complaints and customer satisfaction
surveys in order to ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a

prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies and timely
delivery of materials. The Group reinforces business partnerships with
suppliers and contractors by recurring communication in proactive and

effective manner so as to ensure quality and delivery.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report.

Equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this
annual report.

Reserves

Details of the changes in the Group's reserves for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves
As of 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company
were approximately RMB1,433.7 million.

Borrowings

The details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings as of 31 December
2021 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group in this annual report.
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Senior notes

The Group issued US$300,000,000 12.5% senior notes (the “Senior Notes”)
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. The notes are unsecured, will
mature in June 2022 and are repayable at its nominal value. The senior
notes are guaranteed by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. The Group may redeem all or a portion of the note at the
redemption prices specified in the offering circular after the drawdown
date, plus accrued and unpaid interests to the redemption date, subject
to the terms and conditions specified in the offering circular. The senior
notes are repayable within 12 months and classified as current liability.
The net proceeds from issue of the senior notes are intended to be used
for repayment of certain existing debts of the Company. For details,
please refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Directors of the Company are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Di

Mr. HAO Shengchun

Mr. TANG Guozhong

Ms. ZHANG Jianhua

Ms. CHAN Tan Yee (Appointed on 9 July 2021; re-designated as executive
Director on 26 October 2021)

Non-executive Director
Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun (Appointed on 9 July 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. QU Wenzhou

Ms. XIN Zhu

Mr. TAM Chi Choi

In accordance with Article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Ms. CHAN Tan Yee, Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun , Mr. HAO Shengchun,
Mr. TANG Guozhong and and Ms. XIN Zhu shall retire as Directors at
the annual general meeting. Ms. CHAN Tan Yee, Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun ,
Mr. HAO Shengchun, Mr. TANG Guozhong and and Ms. XIN Zhu, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as Directors at the annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of our executive Directors and non-executive Director has
entered into a service agreement with our Company for a term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date and/or the date of his/
her appointment as appropriate, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from the date of his/her appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior

Management” in this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination committee have
assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent
non-executive Directors are considered to be independent pursuant to
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has been a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted as at 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, was entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 43 and note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report, respectively.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments nor has agreed to

waive his/her emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY ORITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were required to be entered
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out below:
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Interests in shares of the Company (Long position) RARBRDEZR(FE)
Approximate percentage
Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding
EEpE EEMtE R E REMY B
WU Di Controlled corporation 407,789,564 29.90%
R’ ZiEHEE
HAO Shengchun? Controlled corporation 2,000,000 0.14%
& ZEHEE
TANG Guozhong? Controlled corporation 1,000,000 0.07%
EEE ZiEtEE
ZHANG lJianhua? Controlled corporation 1,000,000 0.07%
SRR’ ZEHEE
As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 1,363,544,000 Shares. 2021128318 + KA BB #171,363,544,000 % f%
,f/\ °
Notes: MgsE -
1. These Shares are owned by Mr. WU Di through his wholly-owned 1. ZERMBRBELEFBHPEBRANEIIRELE Hx
company, MeiDi Investment Holding Limited (“MeiDi"). By virtue of the BEA T((%ﬁﬂj)%&ﬁ $E}J€ 55 K EEIED
SFO, Mr. WU Di is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MeiDi. AR BN FIEE RN P AR -
2. Tangjia Real Estate Management Co,, Limited (“Tangjia”) is owned asto 2. EEEEESEARAR([ER])BMBELLARS
20% by Mr. HAO Shengchun, and 10% by each of Ms. ZHANG Jianhua and 20%  WHREZELZ T RERELEESABHEFI0% o
Mr. TANG Guozhong. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. HAO Shengchun, RIBEESMPEKRY - BEELE  BRELAER
Mr. TANG Guozhong and Ms. ZHANG Jianhua is deemed to be interested SREBIE R T F B WA RRE R AT A #92,000,0000% -
in the respective 2,000,000, 1,000,000 and 1,000,000 Shares held by 1,000,0008% % 1,000,0008% B 17 P #E B s ©
Tangjia.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors  [4& FSCFRIREEZ SN - 220214128318 » fER DT
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions  EHE R H 51T A B AR B sk BB EE B X5
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or  }EEERND RESBREE BN AN RIREZARAE

its associated corporations which were required to be recorded in the (&5 352{&1FE R E MR Z R s IR IBIZ 2T BIIZB @
register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or required #1782 &) BB T T (a5 sk & -

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
as set out in this annual report, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2021 were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
nor were there any such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no
subsisting arrangement to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2021, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest
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Approximate percentage

Number of Shares of shareholding

BROmEEB BEEE R E RESABHLL

Xiamen TG Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Beneficial owner 82,501,000 6.05%
EFREEREEER AT E=nBEAA Long position
HE

Chongging International Trust Co., Trustee 82,501,000 6.05%
Ltd.* Long position
BEEREEROARAE SREA HE
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Approximate percentage

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding
BROKEEB EEME R4 & B REBA B ML
Dynasty International Co. Ltd. Beneficial owner 531,604,436 38.98%
("Dynasty Cook”)! EnEAA Long position
"R
Dynasty International Holding Co., Ltd.  Controlled corporation 531,604,436 38.98%
(“Dynasty Cayman”)’ ZEEEE Long position
HE
Good First International Holding Controlled corporation 531,604,436 38.98%
Limited (“Good First HK")' ZAEHEE Long position
BIEBEBRERERAR e
(TREEE])
Good First Holding Limited Controlled corporation 582,210,436 42.69%
(“Good First BVI")":2 SRS EE Long position
"R
Wong Hei (“Ms. Wong")':2 Controlled corporation 582,210,436 42.69%
'WH([ELL])? ZEEEE Long position
HRE
MeiDi Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner 407,789,564 29.90%
EREERER AR EnEEA Long position

78
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 1,363,544,000 Shares.

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2021, Dynasty Cook was wholly owned by Dynasty
Cayman, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Good First HK. Good First
HK'is wholly owned by Good First BVI, a company wholly-owned by Ms.
WONG. By virtue of the SFO, each of Dynasty Cook, Dynasty Cayman,
Good First HK, Good First BVl and Ms. WONG is deemed to be interested

in the same number of Shares in which Dynasty Cook is interested in.

2. Fujia Group Holdings Limited (“Fujia”) is wholly-owned by Good First
BVI, which is in turn wholly owned by Ms. WONG. By virtue of the SFO,
each of Good First BVI and Ms. WONG is deemed to be interested in the

same number of Shares in which Fujia is interested in.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at 31 December 2021, the Company is not aware of any persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
that were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated under which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any of the Shareholders is unsure about the taxation implications
of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, he or she is advised to consult an expert.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTING
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, other than the issuance and
allotment of 30,144,000 Shares pursuant to the partial exercise of the
over-allotment option adopted on 6 January 2021 as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 January 2021 and the issuing
of Senior Note, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listing securities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Ms. WONG Hei, the controlling shareholder of the Company, has entered
into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
dated 20 November 2020 in favor of our Company, pursuant to which,
Ms. WONG has undertaken that, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, she
will not, and will procure her close associates (other than members of
our Group) not to directly or indirectly be involved or engaged in any
business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes,
or may compete, with our business, or hold shares or interest in any
companies or business that competes directly or indirectly with the
business engaged by our Group from time to time, except where Ms.
WONG and her close associates hold less than 10% of the total issued
share capital or registered capital of any company which is engaged in
any business that is or may be in competition with any business engaged
by any member of our Group and they do not control the composition
of the board of directors of such companies at any time.
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The Deed of Non-Competition will lapse automatically if (a) Ms. WONG
and her close associates cease to hold, whether directly or indirectly, 30%
or above of our Shares with voting rights or securities or other interests;
or (b) our Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange.

For details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-
Competition” on pages 318 to 327 in the Prospectus.

For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2021, Ms. WONG
or her close associates did not refer any business opportunities related

to restricted business to the Company.

Annual Review

The Company has received the written confirmation letter from Ms.
WONG regarding compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-
Competition. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Deed of Non-Competition and are satisfied that Ms. WONG and her
close associates have complied with their undertakings under the Deed
of Non-Competition for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to

the date of this annual report.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ AND DIRECTORS’ IZEBRBRBESHNBEIMHEBNER
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. WU Di, our executive Director, has interests in Xiamen Gefusite Real #HI{TEFR@LERBEMRENFHEER AR E
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Gefusite”) and Fuxin Group Co., Ltd. (‘Fuxin FITEHIE D REEEEERAF([BEEE ) FH#
Group”). The table below sets forth Mr. WU's shareholding in and the B o TERHIIREERBEFTBIFEREESE

business scope of each of Xiamen Gefusite and Fuxin Group: FRERESESENEBEHE :
Company name Shareholding structure Business scope
NEERE RSB XBEE
Xiamen Gefusite Indirectly owned as to 82% by Mr. WU Xiamen Gefusite is engaged in the property

development in Xiamen, Fujian Province. The
property projects developed by Xiamen Gefusite
have been completed and delivered.

=PI HT R SEAERBEEE82% EFIREA SN EEE EPFIT R EMERE - &
FIFEET S PR EMFEIRE BRI R -

Fuxin Group Directly owned as to 10% by Mr. WU and 1.96% by Fuxin Group is an investment holding company
a company controlled by Mr. WU in the PRC. Please refer to the Prospectus for
details.
BEEHE HRELTEEEFI0ARBRELMENN — REKBEA—HPBEKREERAR - GHEFIER

fE A BIHEE 1.96% 2HEBRER -
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Although there is overlap between the business of Xiamen Gefusite and
our Group, having taking into account that (a) substantially all of the
properties developed by Xiamen Gefusite have been completed and
delivered; and (b) Mr. WU has undertaken to procure Xiamen Gefusite
not to engage in property development business in the future, our
Directors are of the view that no material competition exists between
Xiamen Gefusite and our Group.

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, none of the
controlling Shareholders of the Company or the Directors was engaged
or had interest in any business, apart from the business of the Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions between the Group and certain connected persons of
the Group constitutes continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Set forth below are the details of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group conducted for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which were exempted from the requirements
of independent Shareholders’ approval, but subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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Architectural Design Services

On 20 November 2020, Xiamen Datang Real Estate Group Co.,
Ltd. ("Xiamen Datang”) (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into an architectural design services framework
agreement (the “Design Services Framework Agreement”) with
Xiamen Yingzao Architectural Design Co,, Ltd. (EF9& &2
REFEBR AT (“Xiamen Design”), pursuant to which Xiamen
Design agreed to provide architectural design services, including
but not limited to concept design, construction documentation,
and landscaping design (the “Architectural Design Services”) to
our Group for a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31
December 2022. Our Directors are of the view that Xiamen Design
has adequate resources to fund its business operations and
provide Architectural Design Services based on the cooperation
history with Xiamen Design since 2013. We will endeavor to seek
quotations from at least three qualified independent architectural
design service providers and will only engage Xiamen Design as
the service provider if the price and quality of the Architectural
Design Services are comparable to or more favorable to our
Group than those offered by the independent service providers.
The service fees to be charged for the Architectural Design
Services shall be determined after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the prevailing market price for similar services
in the open market and the anticipated costs of Xiamen Design.
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The maximum annual service fees payable by the Group in
relation to the Architectural Design Services to be provided
under the Design Services Framework Agreement for each of
the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not
exceed RMB4.8 million, RMB8.1 million and RMB10.3 million,
respectively. Such estimation is based on: (i) the number of
existing projects for which we have engaged Xiamen Design
to provide the Architectural Design Services; (ii) the historical
transaction amounts in particular, the actual transaction amount
for the six months ended 30 June 2021; (iii) the total GFA of
properties of our Group which required Architectural Design
Services; and (iv) the expected increase in number of projects
and GFA of our properties which required Architectural Design
Services after taking into account our business development plan
for each of the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022.

The Design Services Framework Agreement is a framework
agreement which provides the mechanism for the operation
of the connected transactions between our Group and Xiamen
Design. It is envisaged that from time to time and as required,
individual service agreements may be required to be entered
into between our Group and Xiamen Design. Each individual
service agreement will set out the scope of services to be
provided by Xiamen Design to our Group. The individual service
agreements may only contain provisions which are in all material
respects consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms
and conditions as set out in the Design Services Framework
Agreement. As the individual service agreements are simply
further elaborations on the services contemplated by the Design
Services Framework Agreement, they do not constitute new
categories of connected transactions as far as Listing Rules
are concerned. Xiamen Design is owned as to 70% by Xiamen
Chengxin Design Consulting Co., Ltd. (EFIH{ERETHERAB
R 2 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen Xindi, which is
indirectly controlled by Ms. Wong, our Controlling Shareholder.
As such, Xiamen Design is a connected person of our Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Design Services Framework Agreement
will constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.
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As some of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profit ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual caps
in relation to the Design Services Framework Agreement are
expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, such transactions will constitute continuing connected
transactions of our Company that will be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but
will be exempted from the independent Shareholders” approval

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amount of the foregoing transactions in
2021 amounted to RMB2.2 million.

Property Management Services

On 20 November 2020, Xiamen Datang (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) entered into a master property management
services agreement (the “Master Property Management Services
Agreement”) with Xiamen Tangren Property Management
Co., Ltd. (EFIEAWEEEBRAF]) (‘Tangren Property”)
pursuant to which we agreed to engage Tangren Property
and its subsidiaries (“Tangren Group”) to provide property
management and related services, including but not limited
to (i) pre-delivery services and property management services
for unsold properties owned by us; (ii) house inspection and
cleaning services; and (iii) display units and on-site sales office
management services (the “Property Management Services”) for
a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.
Our Directors are of the view that Tangren Group has adequate
resources to fund its business operations and provide Property
Management Services based on the cooperation history with
Tangren Group since 2010. The service fees to be charged for
the Property Management Services shall be determined with
reference to a number of factors, including (i) the total GFA
of the property development projects of which such Property
Management Services is required; (i) the anticipated operational
costs (including labor costs, material costs and administrative
costs); and (i) the prevailing market price for similar services
and similar type of projects and shall be no less favorable than
those quoted by independent third parties to us.
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The maximum annual service fees in relation to the Property
Management Services to be provided under the Master Property
Management Services Agreement for each of the years ending 31
December 2021 and 2022 will not exceed, RMB92.6 million and
RMB121.0 million, respectively. Such estimation is based on: (i) the
number of existing property projects for which we have engaged
Tangren Group to provide the Property Management Services; (ii)
the historical transaction amounts for the Track Record Period;
(i) the increase in GFA of new properties which will require pre-
delivery services in 2021 as compared to 2020, which has been
estimated based on the GFA of properties delivered by us and
managed by Tangren Group as of 30 June 2021.

On 15 November 2021, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) with Xiamen
Tangrenjia Property Service Co,, Ltd * (EPIE A=W E RIS B R
7~ |]) (formerly known as Tangren Property) to revise the annual
caps for the two years ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 under
the Master Property Management Services Agreement as the
transaction amount is approaching the annual cap. According to
the Supplemental Agreement, the maximum annual service fees
in relation to the Property Management Services to be provided
under the Master Property Management Services Agreement for
each of the years ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 will not
exceed RMB116.9 million and RMB156.2 million, respectively.
Save for the above, all other existing key terms and conditions
under the Master Property Management Services Agreement
remain unchanged. The Master Property Management Services
Agreement is a framework agreement which provides the
mechanism for the operation of the connected transaction
between our Group and Tangren Group. It is envisaged that
from time to time and as required, individual service agreements
may be required to be entered into between our Group and
Tangren Group. Each individual service agreement will set out
the scope of Property Management Services to be provided by
Tangren Group to our Company, the fees for the services to be
paid by our Company and any detailed specifications which
may be relevant to those engagements. The individual service
agreements may only contain provisions which are in all material
respects consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms
and conditions as set out in the Master Property Management
Services Agreement. Tangren Property is directly owned as to
75% by Xiamen Xindi and 25% by Xiamen Fuxin. Xiamen Xindi
is owned as to 95.5% by Fuxin Group, which is in turn owned as
t0 51.03% by Ms. Wong. Xiamen Fuxin is owned as to 51.26% by
Xiamen Xindi, and 48.74% by Good First Group, which is in turn
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owned as to 90% by Ms. Wong. Accordingly, Tangren Property
is indirectly owned as to approximately 53.76% by Ms. Wong,
and thus indirectly controlled by Ms. Wong, our Controlling
Shareholder. As such, Tangren Property is a connected person of
our Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Master Property Management
Services Agreement (as revised by Supplemental Agreement)
will constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.
As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual
caps in relation to the Master Property Management Services
Agreement (as revised by Supplemental Agreement) is expected
to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, such
transactions will constitute continuing connected transactions
for our Company that will be subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but will be exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amount of the foregoing transactions in
2021 amounted to RMB93.4 million.

Annual Review

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above

continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing

Rules and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

0

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms; and
according to the agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's
Shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the independent auditor of the Company, was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. The copy of the independent auditor's letter provided by the
auditor to the Company has been submitted to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company’s
auditor confirmed that:

a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is contained in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report.
Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions of the
Group falls under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 20 November 2020, the summary of principal terms of

which is as follows:

(@) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared
in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
had or may have made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in our Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of our Group.
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Participants
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or

officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of our Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,

distributors and such other persons who, in the sole

opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed

to our Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Consideration of options granted
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to our Company by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global Offering, being 133,340,000
Shares (representing approximately 9.78% as at the date of this
annual report), excluding for this purpose Shares which would
have been issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any

other share option schemes of our Company).
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Maximum number of options granted

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be

issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share

Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our

Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)

to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the

date of grant shall not exceed 1% of our Shares in issue as at

the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this

1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)

(i)

theissue of a circular by our Company to our Shareholders
which shall comply with Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of
the Listing Rules and/or such other requirements as
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
The circular to be issued by our Company shall contain
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of
and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant), the information
as required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer
required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time with such Eligible Participant
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(or his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if
the Eligible Participant is a core connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
The numbers and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted to such participant must be
fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date of
the Board meeting at which the Board proposes to grant
the options to such Eligible Participant shall be taken
as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price of our Shares.
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Granting options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of our Company or any of their

respective associates

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board proposes to
grant options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive Director (or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) which will result in the number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, canceled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other
percentage as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules of our Shares in issue on the date of
offer of the option; and

(if) having an aggregate value, based on the official closing
price of our Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of such grant, in excess
of HKS5 million or such other sum as may be from time
to time provided under the Listing Rules. Such further
grant of options will be subject to the issue of a circular
by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting on a poll at which the grantee,
his/her associates and all core connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favor, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of
such options shall be taken as a poll.
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Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share

Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. There is no minimum period
specified in the Share Option Scheme before the option can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted. No option may be granted more than 10
years after the Listing Date. Subject to earlier termination by
our Company in general meeting or by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Listing Date. As at the date of this annual report,
the remaining life of this Share Option Scheme is eight years
and eight months.

Subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of our Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(if) the average of the official closing prices of our Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no option had been granted or

agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made charitable
and other donations in a total amount of approximately RMB6 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 December 2021, the Company as guarantor entered into certain
guarantee agreements to provide guarantees for two subsidiaries of
Good First Group Co., Limited. ({255 BB A F]). The guarantee
agreements were approved by independent Shareholders on the virtual
general meeting held on 21 February 2022. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2021and circular
of the Company dated 26 January 2022. No other significant events
occurred after the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this

annual report.
AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has audited the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
and will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the annual general meeting.
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Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s ETZZE SRS - EFSE - TRFHRERER
recommendation, a resolution for the re-appointment of REFAEEHRE-—HARBRUENEZAERE TRUKE
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's auditor is to be proposed ~ E&TAIEMT AN ATIZEERED - B LW AR - AR
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has been no change ~ FIBVIZEIADI M FE o

of the auditor of the Company from the Listing Date.

On behalf of the Board REESE

Datang Group Holdings Limited REEEERBRAER
Mr. WU Di RiExXE

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022 BE - 2022F3A30H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions stated
in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules since the Listing Date. The Company is committed to the
view that the Board should include a balanced composition of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors so that there is a
strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with all then applicable provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive
Directors, namely Mr. WU Di (chairman of the Board), Mr. HAO Shengchun
(president), Mr. TANG Guozhong, Ms. ZHANG Jianhua and Ms. CHAN
Tan Yee, one non-executive Director, Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. QU Wenzhou, Ms. XIN
Zhu and Mr. TAM Chi Choi. An updated list of the Directors and their
roles and functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company, respectively. Their names and biographical details
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this report. The overall management and supervision of the Company’s
operation and the function of formulating overall business strategies
were vested in the Board. Save as disclosed in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this report, there is no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent one-third of the Board, complying with the requirement under
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the board.
The Board believes there is sufficient independence element in the Board
to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors have
to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the
date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, including five
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. Names and biographical details are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice

in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging
their duties to the Company.

MEMBERS OF OUR BOARD

Date of joining
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appointment as  Roles and

Name Age Existing position the Group Director responsibilities
BEEH
] Fie BRAERK MAXEEZE ESB2ZH AeREE
Mr. WU Di 56  Executive Director 22 January 2011 14 December 2018 Responsible for the overall strategic
Rkt and chairman 2011451 228 201812 4148 development and major business
WITES - £fE decisions of the Group
BEAEENERERERLE
REBREK

Mr. HAO 47  Executive Director 22 January 2011 11 November 2019  Responsible for assisting in the

Shengchun and president 201141 H228 2019FF 11 A11H overall strategic development,
WAL E BITEERAR operational planning and daily

operation of the Group
BEBBAEENBRRKE
R’ BLTERAREEE
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Date of
Date of joining appointmentas  Roles and
Name Age Existing position the Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE Fie BRERK MAXEEzH EEZH AEREME
Mr. TANG 47  Executive Director 22 January 2011 11 November 2019 Responsible for securities
Guozhong and joint 20114F1 A22H 201911 A118 management, risk management
FERSE A company and public relations
secretary management of the Group
HITESR BEAEEESER  RARER
NS RAHBERER
Ms. ZHANG Jianhua 69  Executive Director 22 January 2011 11 November 2019 Responsible for human resources
REBELZ L BWITES 20114F1 228 2019911 A118 management of the Group
BEAEEANERER
Ms. CHAN Tan Yee 34 Executive Director 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 Responsible for providing valuable
fRARME 2L WITES 20214798 202147 A9H advice to the Board on corporate
governance of the Group
BEMAEENCEE cMES
FRHESE
Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun 41 Non-executive 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 Responsible for providing valuable
PRREESE Z0 1 Director 20217 A9AH 20217 A9H advice to the Board of the Group
ERITEF BERAEEEESRHUESE
2
Mr. QU Wenzhou 49 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing

JESUM

executive Director

BUIFTES

2020%F11 B20H

2020%F11 B20H

independent advice on the
operations and management of
the Group

BEAAEENLE MNERREH
BAUBR
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Date of
Date of joining appointmentas  Roles and
Name Age Existing position the Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE Fie RERHK MAXEE 2R ETS2H AEREME
Ms. XIN Zhu 53 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
FIRL T executive Director 2020811 H208 2020911 A20H independent advice on the
BAIERITES operations and management of
the Group
BEMAEENKE NERREH
BYER
Mr. TAM Chi Choi 57 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
EEA LA executive Director 20209118208 20204118208 independent advice on the
B IERITES operations and management of

The roles of the chairman and the president of the Company have
been separated pursuant to the then applicable code provision A.2.1
of the Corporate Governance Code, Mr. WU Di served as the chairman
of the Company and Mr. HAO Shengchun served as the president of
the Company (the “President”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

the Group
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Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company
is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain
legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The Board
also gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and will review
the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they

remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are published in a timely
manner. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the

Group on a going concern basis.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 119 to 126.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. The functions of independent
non-executive Directors include bringing an impartial view and judgment
on issues of the Company’s strategies, performance and control; and
scrutinizing the Company’s performance and monitoring performance

reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have made positive contributions to the development of the Company
through providing their professional advice to the Board.

All non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has provided an annual written
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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As of the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
including two female executive Directors, one female non-executive
Director and one female independent non-executive Director. The
Directors also have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and experience,
including property development, overall business management, finance
and investment. They obtained degrees in various majors including
business administration, civil engineering, international finance, physics,
accounting and law. The Board has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing one-third
of the Board members. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of
age, ranging from 34 years old to 69 years old. The Company has taken
and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels
of the Group, including but without limitation at the Board and senior
management levels. Taking into account the business model of the
Group and its specific needs as well as the presence of four female
Directors out of a total of nine Board members, the Directors consider
that the composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity policy.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the board diversity policy
further provides that the Board shall take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The
Group will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior level so that it will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board going forward. It
is the objective of the Company to maintain an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and

international and local recommended best practices.

The nomination committee of the Company is responsible for ensuring
the diversity of the Board members and compliance with relevant codes
governing board diversity under the Listing Rules. The nomination
committee of the Company will review the board diversity policy and its

diversity profile from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject
to his/her retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.
The Articles of Association provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his/her appointment or as an additional member
of the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The members of the Company may, at any general meetings
convened and held in accordance with the Articles of Association, by
ordinary resolution remove a Director at any time before the expiration
of his/her period of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
the Articles of Association or in any agreement between the Company
and such Director (but without prejudice to any claim for damages

under any such agreement).

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the Directors
will receive updates on the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the latest development of the Group’s business and
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31
December 2021 and prior to this annual report being published, all
of the Directors, namely, Mr. WU Di (chairman of the Board), Mr. HAO
Shengchun, Mr. TANG Guozhong, Ms. ZHANG Jianhua, Ms. CHAN Tan Yee,
Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun, Mr. QU Wenzhou, Ms. XIN Zhu and Mr. TAM Chi Choi
participated in a training session conducted by Sidley Austin, the legal
adviser of the Company as to Hong Kong laws, on director’s and senior
management'’s regulatory compliance under the Listing Rules and the
SFO and complied with the then applicable code provision A.6.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code.
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The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December

2021 and up to date of this report are summarized as follows:

HZE2021F12A31B L FERAER

BollFCERABAENT

BEAHNES

Type of Training "

Directors = S| dE R (i)
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. WU Di REE A
Mr. HAO Shengchun il A
Mr. TANG Guozhong RS A A
Ms. ZHANG Jianhua RIEEL L A
Ms. CHAN Tan Yee FPN=x-n A
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun PRS2+ A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIEHTES
Mr. QU Wenzhou JESUM S & A
Ms. XIN Zhu FERZ T A
Mr. TAM Chi Choi BEARE Aand B
Note: f5E -
Types of Training BFaigany
A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, A : Z2PEIIRE - BEETRAG®R g @&
seminars, conferences and workshops K T{E4E
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and B : BIREARRART IR « AL - HAT) - RS RABRE T

relevant publications



The Company will arrange regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties. Pursuant to the requirements
of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors have provided the Company with records of the training they
received to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed
and relevant.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate in meetings either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Board holds at least four meetings a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Additional meetings would be
arranged, if and when required. The date of each meeting is decided in

advance to enable the Directors to attend the meeting.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year.
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Attendance Record of Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held five Board
meetings. The table below sets out the details of attendance record of
the Directors at Board and committee meetings, as well as at the annual
general meeting of Shareholders held during the year:

HZE20201F12A31BEFE ARA8RARESS
& o TR FALBARITESSREESS
URBRRBFRENEF DTS

=3
229

Number of Meetings held/attendance SEETREHE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
e/ gRRd
Annual/
Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Kr@Frg/
Name of Director £t EZg ERERE §MESE REZEE  RRABAAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WU Di Rt 4f5 N/A N/A 1/1 11
Mr. HAO Shengchun MBEELE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A ”n
Mr. TANG Guozhong EEIELE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A n
Ms. ZHANG Jianhua REZNT 4/5 N/A 7 N/A n
Ms. CHAN Tan Yee (Appointed on 9July 2021)  BRRMh%t (202145789 33 N/A N/A N/A N/A
BEZ)
Non-executive Director FYTES
Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun (Appointed on 9 July 2021)  REESS T+ (BA20214 79 33 N/A N/A N/A N/A
REZ)
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTEE
Mr. QU Wenzhou B0 45 ” n N/A ”n
Ms. XIN Zhu FHRT 4/5 22 1/1 ”n ”n
Mr. TAM Chi Choi Ehybika 4/5 2”2 N/A ”n ”n



Nomination policy

The nomination committee of the Company utilizes various methods for
identifying candidates for directorship, including recommendations from
Board members, management and professional search firms. In addition,
the nomination committee of the Company will consider candidates for
directorship properly submitted by the Shareholders. The evaluation
of candidates for directorship by the nomination committee of the
Company may include, without limitation, review of biographies and
working experience, personal interviews, verification of professional
and personal references and performance of background checks. The
Board will consider the recommendations of the nomination committee
of the Company and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the Shareholders for their election at the
general meeting of the Company, or appointing the suitable candidate
to act as Director to fill the Board vacancy or as an additional to the
Board members, subject to compliance of the constitutional documents
of the Company. All appointments of Director should be confirmed by
letter of appointment and/or service contract setting out the key terms

and conditions of the appointment of Directors.

The nomination committee of the Company considers the following
qualifications as a minimum to be required for a candidate in
recommending to the Board to be a potential new Director, or the
continued service of existing Director:

the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and

the ability to exercise sound business judgment;
skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

the ability to assistand support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required
for a member of the Board and the commitment of time and

energy necessary to diligently carry out those responsibilities;
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independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as required
under the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is in
conformity with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the nomination committee
of the Company has discharged the above duties.

The nomination committee of the Company may also consider such
other factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company

and the Shareholders as a whole.

COMPLIANCEWITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listing Issuers (the "Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company since the Listing and, upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that he/she complied
with all applicable code provisions under the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to
deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/she possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees
was notified to the Company.
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REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to then applicable code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the following table summarizes the emoluments, by
band, of the members of the Company’s senior management during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:
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BIECEEATAERBAZ EBISETAE - T
KA Z=2021F12 8318 % 2020512831 B IEFE
RARERERENKENFHRERIED):

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2021 2020

20215 20204
RMBO — RMB500,000 AR®LE ARKS500,0007T 4 3
RMB500,001 — RMB1,000,000 ARHE500,0017TE AR HE1,000,0007T 1 1
RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 AER#1,000,00170 2 A R#1,500,0007T 2 2
RMB1,500,001 — RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,00170 2 A R#2,000,0007T 0 0

Over RMB2,000,000 838 A K #2,000,0007T
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company in this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company may, at its discretion, declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into account,
inter alia, the Group’s earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital
requirements, statutory fund reserve requirements and any other
conditions that the Board may consider relevant. Whilst the Board will
review from time to time the determination on proposed dividend
with the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EERINEE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties EEBEZBERITHEEEANRBE - 821
including:

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on - HIE AR AR RINDEERBEE LR ¢
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional - B REEESRaAEEENEIIRBES
development of Directors and senior management; FEEBRE

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on - B REBARRGETEEREERTENBUR
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; RER

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and - HIE A REREANEE REENERST
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and AIREHRFM (B &

Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to - R AR RIE ST ETAR AP 10 (D EERST
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate AR EEARE ) ZI1EN °
Governance Report).

BE2021F1N2A3BLFE r EFgC BT LA
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The Board has performed the above duties during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES BEEZES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit EEFBEXU=-ZEE  MERZEY  FWZ
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee, each B8 NREZEEL @ FLESHEFPEEERESR
with specific written terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of Bl + UEERANE B FEHEHNFS -

the Group's affairs.

The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the  EFZE 8B & KB 1 & B & 70 24N 2 5] 49 uh KX B 2 B 49
Company's website and the Stock Exchange'’s website and are available ¥4 + W EAR R ZKA[HER] -
to shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee EREES

The Company established the audit committee in compliance with —~ ZN2 &2 020¢1 H20BRE EmRANE321E323
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference in RV B ZEZEE - WREBEEE B )ATRIHIFT S EE
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code on 20 November 2020.  ###1E o Fiz%k i EMFERT AR REENKH
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and monitor ~ ¥RMIERNEBEIE RS - WIHMESSBITEEZE
the financial reporting process and internal control system and assist 5 ° HZZEGMBERITEEELRE @ B85

—

the Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit responsibility. The
audit committee is also responsible for audit performing the corporate
governance duties including:

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on BIE R AR BN EERBOR R ER
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional R REEESRaAEEENSIIIRBES
development of Directors and senior management; Egi

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on - B REBEARARNGETEEREERENBE
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; KER

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and - HIE A AEEEANEENESNRTE
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and AIREHFM (B &

Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to - 5 AR A ST _E TR BB U (R EEVRST
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate AR EEARE) 2I1ER o
Governance Report).

The audit committee consists of three independent non-executive BIZZEB MR =-HABUIENITESMEK - EXXUMNEE
Directors, namely Mr. QU Wenzhou (the chairman of the audit committee), (BZEZEEEFE) FRLLTREBEES K4 - R E
Ms. XIN Zhu and Mr. TAM Chi Choi. In compliance with Rule 321 of THBIZEI2MEERTE - EXZESXFEBEESRHE
the Listing Rules, the chairman of the audit committee possesses the ~ REFEE °

appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings to review, in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2021, among others, the unaudited interim
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2021, the financial
reporting and the compliance matters, compliance with the corporate
governance policy and practice, the audited annual results and financial
report for the year ended 31 December 2020, the financial, operational
and compliance monitoring, the risk management control, the work of
the internal and external auditors, the service fees due to the external
auditor as well as the re-appointment of external auditors, the interim
and annual financial results and reports and significant issues on the
financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, appointment
of external auditors and relevant scope of works and, connected
transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the remuneration committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
on 20 November 2020. The remuneration committee of the Company
reviews and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other
benefits paid by the Group to its Directors and senior management.
The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement in the
Group's affairs, the performance and profitability as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration comprises basic salaries and allowances, bonus, equity-
settled share based payments and retirement benefit contributions. The
remuneration of all the Directors and senior management is subject to
regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that levels
of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The remuneration committee of the Company consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, namely independent non-executive Directors Ms. XIN Zhu
(the chairman of the remuneration committee), Mr. QU Wenzhou and
executive Director Ms. ZHANG Jianhua.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year to consider
the relevant matters regarding the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company, and consider and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration for non-executive director and independent non-

executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee also made recommendations to the Board
on the terms of service contracts or letters of appointment of the new
Directors appointed during the year.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the nomination committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
on 20 November 2020. The primary responsibilities of the nomination
committee of the Company are to consider and recommend to the
Board suitable and qualified candidates of Directors and to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the board diversity
policy adopted by the Company on a regular basis.

The nomination committee of the Company consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director. The three members are executive Director Mr. WU Di (the
chairman of the nomination committee), independent non-executive
Directors Mr. TAM Chi Choi and Ms. XIN Zhu.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting to review, among
others, the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the
skills, knowledge, experience, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience and length of service)
of the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company, to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, to discuss the Directors who retired by rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association, being eligible, had offered themselves
for re-election at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any measurable
objective implementing the Board diversity policy.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
SYSTEMS

INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishment,
review and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Board has conducted a comprehensive review of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The internal
control system covers all major aspects of the Group’s operations,
including, among others, property development, property sales,
investment property management, procurement, financial reporting,
asset management, budgeting and accounting processes. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group also has set up the risk management department to advise
the executive Directors and senior management regarding the risk
control and compliance issues arising from the day-to-day business
operations of the PRC subsidiaries. The risk management department
is responsible for setting up the detailed procedures for identification,
assessment and management of major risks, the procedures for reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control system, the
procedures for addressing defect of internal control, the procedures
for dealing with and publication of insider information and advising
corresponding internal control measures.
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The Board considers that the current composition of the risk management
and control team offers the expertise to provide a risk assessment of key
areas of concern, such as strategy, operations, finance and compliance,
to the Board and assists the Board to effectively plan and manage the
operations of the Group's overall business. The Board, as supported by
the Audit Committee as well as the management report and the risk
management department, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended 31 December 2021, and considered that such
systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered the
financial reporting and internal audit function and staff qualifications,
experiences and relevant resources.

The annual review in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 has
considered, among others (i) adequacy of resources; (ii) staff qualifications
and experience; (iii) training programmes for the staff; and (iv) budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Board also conducted a comprehensive evaluation on the timeliness,
effectiveness and normativity of the procedures for handling and
releasing inside information of the Company, as well as the effectiveness
of the Company'’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board considers
that the risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are effective and adequate.

The Company would appoint independent consultancy firm to conduct a
thorough review of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries on regular intervals basis when necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB5.30 million and RMB0.79
million respectively. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external
auditors of the Company, RMB6.09 million in total, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021
is set out below:
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Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category B35l Bt ERER

RMB'000

AR¥ET T

Audit services EZRE 5,300
Non-audit services IEEAZARTS

— Tax advisory services — B EE AR TS 775

- Others —Efb 13

6,088

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. TANG Guozhong and Ms. CHEE Charlotte are the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Ms. CHEE is a senior manager of the Corporate
Services division of Tricor Services Limited. Ms. CHEE's primary contact at
the Company is Mr. TANG. Mr. TANG and Ms. CHEE has confirmed that
for the year ended 31 December 2021, they have taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules. The biographies of Mr. TANG and Ms. CHEE are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and board practices and matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after submission of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such submission the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association regarding
procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for any business specified in such written requisition.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the joint company secretary of the Company
at the Group's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change to the Group's constitutional documents
since the Listing Date. The memorandum of association of the Group
and the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders
and investors in a timely, open and transparent manner. Corporate
communications (such as interim and annual reports, notices, circulars
and announcements) are sent to Shareholders in a timely manner and
are available on the websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiry from investors and Shareholders, please contact:

Telephone: (852) 3703 4678
Email: ir@dyna888.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising five executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The powers and duties of our Board including
convening general meetings and reporting our Board's work at our
general meetings, determining our business and investment plans,
preparing our annual financial budgets and final reports, formulating
proposals for profit distributions and exercising other powers, functions
and duties as conferred by the Articles. We have entered into a service
agreement with each of our executive Directors and non-executive
Directors. We have also entered into a letter of appointment with each

of our independent non-executive Directors.

The table below shows certain information in respect of members of

our Board and senior management of our Company:

Exg

EZeRNANRESAK  BRALBWTES - —
BENTESER =B IUINTES - EFEGNED
LBEERARARRAGLERRAE LREEES
MTE  BERMNBERRENS  REFEMH
BERMBERE  EMNBEOENR - URITEER
AR TEOEMES  BREMER - RASESHNT
EERIFRTESIT UM HZE - WATERSBL
FRITESRIIURMEE -

TRITANESERAATSRERERENET
&R

Members of our Board EEENE
Date of
Date of joining appointment as  Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE FiR BRAERK MAZEEZE ESZH AeREE
Mr. WU Di 56  Executive Director 22 January 2011 14 December 2018 Responsible for the overall strategic
Rl AE and chairman 20114F1 A 228 2018912 A148 development and major business
WTESREE decisions of our Group
BEAEENERERERLE
REBIRE
Mr. HAO 47  Executive Director 22 January 2011 11 November 2019  Responsible for assisting in the
Shengchun and president 20114F1 A22H 2019%F11 A118 overall strategic development,
MEBELEE BITEERAER operational planning and daily
operation of our Group
BB BB AR B A R RAL B
R ELERATEEL
Mr. TANG 47  Executive Director 22 January 2011 11 November 2019 Responsible for securities
Guozhong and joint 20114F1 228 201911 4118 management, risk management
BB A4 company and public relations
secretary management of our Group
HITESR BEAEEESER  ARER

BEARWE

RAHKRREER
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Date of
Date of joining appointment as  Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group Director responsibilities
BEEH
HE FiR BERK MAZEEZE ESZH AEeREE
Ms. CHAN Tan Yee 34 Executive Director 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 Responsible for providing valuable
BRRIaZ L WITES 20217 A9H 20217 498 advice to the Board on corporate
governance of the Group
BERAEENCEE MES
SRHEER
Ms. CHEN Xiaoyun 41 Non-executive 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 Responsible for providing valuable
FREESS 2+ Director 202147 A 9H 202147 A9H advice to the Board of the Group
HERITEF BERAEEERSRHUESE
R
Ms. ZHANG Jianhua 69  Executive Director 22 January 2011 11 November 2019  Responsible for human resources
REELZ+ BITES 20114F1 A 220 201911 A 118 management of our Group
BEXREBEANERER
Mr. QU Wenzhou 49  Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
JB SN S E executive Director 20209118208 20209118208 independent advice on the
B IERITES operations and management of
our Group
BERAEENKLE R ERREM
BYER
Ms. XIN Zhu 53  Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
FHRZT executive Director 20208118208 20209118208 independent advice on the
B IEHITES operations and management of
our Group
BEMAEENKE R ERREM
BYER
Mr. TAM Chi Choi 57 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing

BEARE

executive Director

BUIFTES

2020%F11 A20H

2020%F11 A 20H

independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BERAEENLE R ERREM
BAER
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Members of senior management SREEEKE
Date of
appointment
Date of joining as senior Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group management responsibilities
BEZER
BREEENE
HE Fie RAERK MAZXEEZE 2ZH AEREME
Mr. LIN Ruiyan 51 Vice President 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for investment
MR KB A& EEEE=y 201141 A22H 201141 228 management and financial
management of our Group
BEAKEREEBERVKER
Ms. Mi Yuanyuan 46  Vice President 22 January 2011 18 January 2016 Responsible for contract cost
KREEZ+ BlAEE 20111 A22H 201651 A 18H management of our Group,
operation and assisting
in product development
management of our Group
BEAEEARGEERE &%
KB E Mm% E R
Mr. LIU Weiping 41 Vice President 16 July 2011 10 July 2017 Responsible for funds management
EllEa e Pty 20115 7R16H 20174 7R108 and assisting in financial
management of our Group
BEAXREEESEE NGB
B
Mr. FU Mingjun 41 Vice President 1 February 2021 1 August 2021 Responsible for brand building and
INLEE EFEESY 20212 A1H 20214F8 A 1H media relation management,

marketing and sales return

management of our Group
BEAEERERRERRERAR

B BHENIHERRER



Executive Directors

Mr. WU Di (&), aged 56, was appointed as our Director on 14
December 2018 and was appointed as the chairman of our Board and
redesignated as our executive Director on 11 November 2019. Mr. WU
joined our Group in January 2011 as the president of Xiamen Datang and
has since then been responsible for the overall strategic development
and major business decisions of our Group. Mr. WU currently holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of our Group, including Xiamen
Datang, Zhangzhou Datang and Zhangzhou Xindi.

Mr. WU has over 20 years of experience in real estate industry. Mr. WU
joined Fuxin Group as a president in January 2003, and since January
2016, has been the chairman of the board of directors of Fuxin Group and
he is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning. Since October
1993, Mr. WU has been working at Xiamen Fuxin. Since June 2012, he
has been a non-executive director of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd. (FE R A RITID AR A F)), the A shares and H shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600016) and
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01988), respectively.
Since January 2011, he has been a director of Hangzhou United Rural
Commercial Bank Co,, Ltd (M EEE B B ERITRMD BR A F)D.
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Mr. WU is a council member of Jimei University ((835 K£2) in the PRC.
He is currently a representative of the thirteenth session of the Fujian
Provincial People’s Congress ({832 & % + =@ AR KR E), and has
been a member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (fBIARBUSTHIRI &%) of Xiamen since
2007. Mr. WU was appointed as the honorary chairman of the second
Non-state-owned Enterprise Chamber of Commerce in Fujian (f@&%&
RE&EMBZEEE)in December 2017, the vice chairman of Fujian Province
Association of Industry and Commerce (f&32%& T ) in August 2017
and a standing chairman of China International Chamber of Commerce
for the Private Sector (FBIR & BB A ERE) in May 2012.

Mr. WU obtained a bachelor's degree in fishery machinery from the
Xiamen Institute of Aquatic Products (BEFI7KEEZEET) (now known as
Fisheries College of Jimei University (532 X 22K EEFT)) in the PRC in
July 1986, and completed an advanced course in global economics from
Xiamen University (BF9AE2) in the PRC in May 1998. He obtained a
doctorate’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China (7
ARKEZ) in the PRC in January 2014 and has been serving as a guest
professor of Renmin University of China since then. Mr. WU obtained a
senior economist certificate from Fujian Provincial Personnel Department

(182 A AFEEE) in December 2005.

Mr. WU received multiple awards in recognition of his outstanding
achievements. Mr. WU obtained an outstanding contribution award of
Fujian Merchants Construction of Haixi area (B8 &:% /875 BB
#%) by Fujian Provincial People’s Government in June 2013. He obtained
an outstanding contribution award of non-public economic individual
donation and public welfare GEABHILEBEALBEAZES) in
Fujian Province by Fujian Provincial People’s Government in June 2013.
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Mr. HAO Shengchun (5 &), aged 47, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019 and is responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development, operational planning and daily operation
of our Group. Mr. HAO joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant
to the president of Xiamen Datang, and was promoted to vice president
and executive vice president in January 2013 and July 2014, respectively.
Mr. HAO was appointed as the president of our Group in January 2015.

Mr. HAO has over 20 years of experience in real estate industry. From
March 2003 to January 2011, Mr. HAO worked at Xiamen Xindi, where
he last served as a vice president and was primarily responsible for the
cost management, engineering technology and marketing operations.
From August 2000 to March 2003, Mr. HAO worked at South Asia Real
Estate Holding Co,, Ltd. (R z=x th ZEE 5 B B BR /2 7)), a property developer,
as a civil engineer where he was primarily responsible for the on-site
management of its property development projects. From July 1996 to
August 2000, Mr. HAO worked at the China Construction Fifth Engineering
Bureau the Second Construction and Installation (Hunan) Co., Ltd. (&
F B L HE (R A A)), where he last served as deputy project
manager and was primarily responsible for its project management, cost

management and on-site construction management.

Mr. HAO obtained a diploma in industrial and civil construction from
Yueyang University (FEF5KXZ) (now known as Hunan University of
Technology (H#F 32 T A £)) in the PRC in July 1996. Mr. HAO obtained
a bachelor's degree in construction engineering from Central South
University (FF B A E2) in the PRC in December 2002. Mr. HAO became a
certified construction cost engineer in January 2003, and a certified Class
1 constructor (—#%ZE#EAD) in February 2008. Mr. HAO also obtained
qualification as a construction economist by the Personnel Department
(ANZEEB) of the PRC in December 2002.
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Mr. TANG Guozhong (& Bl #Z), aged 47, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019, and is primarily responsible for securities
management, risk management and public relations management of
our Group. Mr. TANG joined our Group in January 2011, served as a vice
president of Xiamen Datang.

Mr. TANG has over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry. From
July 1999 to December 2000, Mr. TANG served as a deputy manager of
the finance department of Xiamen Fuxin, and was responsible for its
financial management. From January 2001 to January 2011, Mr. TANG
worked at Fuxin Group, where he last served as a financial controller and

was primarily responsible for its financial management.

Since December 2016, Mr. TANG has been a vice president of the
general chamber of commerce of Xiamen Association of Industry and
Commerce (BP9 TREBHARRE D)) and a vice president of Xiamen
Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai (L& T EPIRE ). Mr. TANG was a
standing committee member of Xiamen Foreign Investment Enterprise
Association (EFITAMNEIRE B EHE) from June 2013 to May 2019,

and has been a vice president of the association since June 2019.

Mr. TANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in auditing in July 1996, a master’s
degree in accounting in July 1999 and a doctorate’s degree in accounting
in July 2005, all from Xiamen University (EF9AZ2) in the PRC. Mr. TANG
became a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant
in December 1998 and a registered tax advisor in the PRC in June 2001.
He also obtained a senior accountant certificate from Fujian Provincial
Personnel Department (8% AZEB8) in May 2005.

BEEXLE 475 0 M2019F 11 A1 BEZ T AT
B FZEEAEERSFERE  RREERAHE
FRER - BAEER20MF1AMARER - CEEM
RNEBBIBE -

EAEEREITEAR@0FAER - N1999F7AE
2000F 128 - BRERTEMREVBIRLE - 8
EWBER - R2001F1AZE2011F1H - BERARER
EEEIE SRBHAVELE  IEBFEUKE
I8 o

BAEB0I6FAEFEMT IAM(BRE)ae
EREBMEMESEER - BAEB2013F6ARE
019F s ARAEMMIIERECERBSEHES - 1
B2019F6 AREFZBERIER -

EREM1996F7 AREFREEMASET 224 -
199957 ARG AR FHIE T 246 - 70200557 AER
BRREHELEM - FAEMI998F12AK AT E
&R e e B I 02001 46 AR A BT
TEEM o EIRR2005F5 AMBREE AZBEENSR
GETAIESE o

2hvay=1



Ms. ZHANG Jianhua (3R %), aged 69, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019 and is responsible for human resources
management of our Group. Ms. ZHANG joined our Group in January
2011, served as a vice president of Xiamen Datang and she became a
director of Xiamen Datang in January 2016.

Ms. ZHANG has over 25 years of experience in real estate industry. Ms.
ZHANG served as a vice president of Fuxin Group from May 1995 to
October 2019 and was primarily responsible for its human resources
management. From December 1993 to January 2011, Ms. ZHANG served
as a deputy general manager and director of Xiamen Fuxin.

From December 2007 to November 2016, Ms. ZHANG served as a vice
president of Chamber of Commerce of Siming District, Xiamen (&9
MERAES), and has been an honorary president since November
2016. Ms. ZHANG has been a council member of the Alumni Association
of Jimei University ((835 K2 in the PRC since July 2007.

Ms. ZHANG obtained a diploma for special training program for
government and party cadres (EHR#EBE(EHEL) from the Open
University of Fujian ({& &4 B ERAZ) in the PRC in July 1986. Ms.
ZHANG obtained a senior economist certificate from Fujian Provincial
Personnel Department (f&#£% A S E2) in December 2005.

Ms. Chan Tan Yee, aged 34, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 9 July 2021, and re-designated as an
executive Director on 26 October 2021.

Ms. Chan has over 10 years of experience in the finance and private
equity industry. She served as a manager of the Royal Bank of Scotland
in London, United Kingdom from 2010 to 2012 and as an investment
associate of New Horizon Capital, a private equity fund from 2014
to 2016. She has been serving as the director of Good First Group, a
company principally engaged in finance business since 2013. She is
also the founder of Newgen Capital, an investment fund founded in
2019.

She received a bachelor's degree in Management Sciences from the
London School of Economics and Political Science in the United
Kingdom in 2009 and a master degree in Banking and International
Finance from the Cass Business School London in the United Kingdom
in 2010.
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Non-executive Director
Ms. Chen Xiaoyun, aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 9 July 2021.

Ms. Chen has over 17 years of experience in the banking and finance
industry. She successively served in various positions in the Xiamen
branch of Bank of China Limited ("BOC Xiamen”) from July 2003
to June 2015. She served as the head of the commercial services
division of BOC Xiamen from June 2014 to June 2015. After 12 years
of working experience in BOC Xiamen, Ms. Chen joined Xiamen ITG
Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (EFIEIE £ BUERBR A F]) in July
2015 and served as the general manager of Xiamen ITG Hengxin
Supply Chain Service Co., Ltd* (EFIE B EEHEHEREER A
A]) from August 2015 to June 2019. Ms. Chen served as the deputy
general manager of Xiamen ITG Investment Co, Ltd* (EFIEIZKRE
A B2 7)) from June 2019 to June 2020 and since June 2020, she has
been serving as the deputy general manager of the investment and
development division of Xiamen ITG Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (EFIE
BIEREBBRAR).

She received a bachelor’s degree in Finance from the School of
Economics, Xiamen University in China in July 2003 and a master
degree in Business Administration from the School of Business
Administration, Fuzhou University in China in July 2010.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. QU Wenzhou (J& X i), aged 49, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2020 and is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.

Mr. QU is currently the dean of the Jinyuan Institute for Financial Studies
(& [Bl7EB), professor of the School of Management, and the head
of Business Administration Education Center of Xiamen University (&
FIKE) in the PRC. Mr. QU started to work at Xiamen University in the
PRC as an associate professor in 2005 and became a professor in 2007.

Mr. QU is currently serving or had served as an independent non-
executive director or independent director during the three years
immediately proceeding the date of this annual report in the following
listed companies:

EENEREERE

BN FHITES

ESTM %A - 495% » R2020F 11 B20 B EEZF BB
ERITEE BERLAEBENCEREBREBYE
ﬁ °

ERERETFEEMARSSEMATRRE - BESR
BEARTEEBHETOEE o B ER2005F 7
HEBTBEEFASRRIBR - AWR2007FRBHE -

EAEREZAFRABPI=FAREXEEAT £
MRARMBYIFRITESHBLES ¢

1

Name of Place of listing and
Period of services company Principal business stock code Position(s)
EHBER
BR %A NREH FTEXH R A3 K55 B
Since August 2019 Fuyao Glass Manufacturing float Stock Exchange Independent
Industry Group Co., Ltd. glass, automobile glass (stock code: 3606) non-executive
and construction glass director
201958 A it RREEIEEERN EEDEPIE O AEBIE BT BIIFRTES
ZYNS] NI (B H5% - 3606)
Since September 2018 China Merchants Shekou Development and operation Shenzhen Stock Independent
Industrial Zone Holdings of industrial parks, Exchange (stock director
Co,, Ltd. communities and cruise code: 001979)
business
B2018F9 AR BARRO IXEERE IXERE- - dEREBHE RAIESSM BUES
MABERRA FHREEE (BRfAREE
001979)
Since January 2016 Ronshine China Holdings Property development Stock Exchange Independent

B20165F1 AL

Limited

BETBRIERAR AT

YE G

(stock code: 3301)

BT (B
8 3301)

non-executive
director

BUIFTES
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Accountants since November 2003 and a chartered financial analyst
authorized by the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute since November
2004.

Mr. QU obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied mathematics, a master’s
degree in finance, a master's degree in business administration and a
doctorate’s degree in finance, all from Xiamen University (B F9AE2) in
the PRC in July 1995, July 1999, July 2001 and July 2003, respectively.

JE 199557 B

H2004F 1N AEBFFEBONEHE
BOMTED o

+ 199947 A

Name of Place of listing and
Period of services company Principal business stock code Position(s)
EhER
BRI NEEH FTEXK RS B
From December 2013 Geo-Jade Petroleum Exploration and Shanghai Stock Independent
to July 2019 Corporation development of oil and Exchange (stock director
gas code: 600759)
2013 12AF MBESR SR AR BR A A SRR N R 2% FBESRSM BUES
2019 7A4 (R A 55
600759)
From July 2016 to Fujian Septwolves Industry  Fashion design and Shenzhen Stock Independent
July 2019 Co, Ltd manufacturing Exchange (stock director
code: 002029)
2016F7HE BRLEREBEROHAR RERREE FRYNFEHFRZ S P BUES
201947 A yNC] (B sk -
002029)
From August 2010 to  Mingfa Group Property development Stock Exchange Independent
September 2018 (International) (stock code: 846) non-executive
Company Limited director
20108 R & BB (BR)BRAR  WERHAE B6 32 P BUIERTES
201859 (BRAR 5% - 846)
From March 2015 to Guangdong Baolihua New  New energy power Shenzhen Stock Independent
April 2021 Energy Stock Co., Ltd. generation Exchange (stock director
code: 000690)
201538 E BREBEMERRNE MERES HRYNEHRZ S P BUEE
2021547 fRA (B sk
000690)
Mr. QU has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public B4 H2003E 11 AR AP HIMEtMpees -

RENRTE

+ 200147 A & 20034F
TADREBSHREMASREASRSEEXELTEN - £
BMELTEN THEEELTEMLSRMELIEN -



Ms. XIN Zhu (¥ k), aged 53, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 20 November 2020. Ms. XIN is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group.

Ms. XIN has over 15 years of experience in the accounting industry as
well as executive management in public companies. From February
2001 to February 2006, Ms. XIN worked at Guangdong Holdings Limited
(BB /BT EB AR A7), a company engaged in infrastructure
development, manufacturing and real estate, where she last served
as a deputy general manager of finance department of the group and
financial controller of its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited 07311 B 2B EB B R A 7)), where she was responsible for
the financial management of the group and ERP Informationization
Construction. From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (& 4 &l& & E B R A F]) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 754), a
property developer, where she last served as a vice president, and was
primarily responsible for financial management, financing and fund
management. From July 2008 to June 2014, she worked in China Aoyuan
Group Limited (FFEIRE & E RN BRAR]) (previously known as
China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (/B4 88 [E] i & & B & (D B IR
73 a])), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3883), a property developer, with her last concurrent positions held
as an executive director and executive vice president, and was primarily
responsible for financial management, fund management and internal
auditing. She was also involved in review, discussion and decisions
making of land acquisition when she worked at China Aoyuan Group
Limited. From July 2014 to March 2015, she served as the chief financial
officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (€ ¢ i EE Y B
R 2 F]) (@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3380) where she was primarily responsible for financing.
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Since June 2018, Ms. XIN has been an independent non-executive
director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (BE#H £ A 7)) (@ company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales of
vaccines. Since April 2020, she has been an independent non-executive
director of Central China New Life Limited (B¥HAEEABR AR (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:

9983), a property management service provider.

Ms. XIN obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (7 B A R KZ) in the PRC in July 1990 and a master's
degree in business administration from Auckland Institute of Studies
in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. XIN became a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the PRC in February
1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January 2010.

Mr. TAM Chi Choi (& 7), aged 57, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2020 and is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.

Mr. TAM has over 30 years of accounting and finance experience. He
began his career at KPMG Peat Marwick from August 1987 to April 1991
and his last position was audit supervisor. He worked as an accounting
manager of Kosonic Industries Company Limited from May 1991 to
July 1992 and as a deputy accounting manager of Applied Electronics
(OEM) Limited from December 1992 to July 1994. From August 1994 to
November 2015, he worked at the listing division of the Stock Exchange
and his last position was vice president of the IPO transactions, listing
and regulatory affairs division. From November 2015 to October 2017,
he served as a director of the quality and risk control division of CCB
International Capital Limited. He was the responsible officer of Proton
Capital Limited from February 2018 to September 2018. He has served
as a corporate finance director of Eric Chow & Co. in association with
Commerce and Finance Law Offices since September 2018. Since March
2021, Mr. TAM has been an independent non-executive director of
Helenbergh China Holdings Limited (Sf@&EH BIEEER AT, a
property developer. Since August 2019, he has been an independent
non-executive director of Sinic Holdings (Group) Company Limited (&
NI (EE)BRAF) (@ company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2103), a property developer.
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Mr. TAM obtained an honors diploma in accounting from Hong
Kong Baptist College in July 1987 and a master's degree in business
administration from the University of Canberra in Australia in December
2002. He became a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in October 1995 and October 2000, respectively. Mr. TAM was a committee
member of the ACCA Hong Kong Committee from 2003 to 2008.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have held any other
directorships in listed companies during the three years immediately
preceding the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no other changes to
the Directors’ information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and management of our business.

Mr. LIN Ruiyan (M5 4), aged 51, was appointed as our vice president
in January 2015 and is primarily responsible for investment management

and financial management of our Group.

Mr. LIN has more than 15 years of experience in real estate industry. Mr.
LIN joined our Group in January 2011 as a financial controller and was
later promoted as a vice president in January 2015. Prior to joining our
Group, from June 2008 to January 2011, Mr. LIN worked at Xiamen Xindi
where he successively served as a deputy financial manager, a financial
controller and assistant to president of Xiamen Xindi, where he was
primarily responsible for its financial management. From November
2002 to June 2008, Mr. LIN worked at Fuxin Group where he last served
as an accounting department manager and was primarily responsible
for its accounting management.

REEEZRERAT . —T=—F5% 115

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREERE

BRERIBIF7TAMBERE TSR SR REREN
WH2002F 12 AR RBMBEBN KB THEREBELE
iz » BRI 1995810 A K 2000810 A 5K A R B4
AREHMASGREASHMASEREE - BALLE
B 2003F £2008F BACCAR BN EEE -

B EXFIEES - BRAFRAY=FR - HE
EERELHARNEAEMESRL -

BARFRAPEELES  MEFHEETENNEMBE
BIRE ETRAIE 1351 )R T IARE -

SREERE

BANERERBAERMEBNABRERER -

MIEMBRE 5158 R2015F1 ABRZERBMAE
BE - TEARAEEREEEMYBER -

MEEEFEWETERBBISFLRE o REAER2011
FIAMARER - EEMBHEE - BR2015F1 78
FRBEIBHE - MAREER - WEER2008F6AE
20MF 1 AEEPMEH T - B EFEPIEHIT B
RES  MIISRERAEIE  TEAEMBER - B
2002F 11 HE20085F6 A - MEERBREEEE -
BEBM AL  TEHEESHEE -



116

DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED « Annual Report 2021

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BEENRSHREERE

Mr. LIN obtained a diploma in accounting from Jimei Financial College
(EEF I ERIER) in the PRC in July 1992. He obtained a graduation
certificate in accounting from Fuzhou University (81X 22) in the PRC
in December 2007. Mr. LIN received a qualification as a certified public
accountant in the PRC in December 1999 and became a registered tax
advisor in the PRCin June 2004. Mr. LIN also obtained a senior accountant
certificate from Fujian Provincial Personnel Department (f2i2%& A
EZ) in May 2009.

Ms. MI Yuanyuan (>REE), aged 46, was appointed as vice president
in January 2021. She is responsible for contract cost management of our
Group, operation and assisting in product development management
of our Group.

Ms. MI joined our Group as the general manager of contract cost
department of our Group in January 2011. She became the cost director
and general manager of contract cost department of our Group in July
2014, and has been serving as an assistant to president since January

016. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to January 2011, Ms. Mi
worked at Xiamen Xindi, where she last served as a deputy president
of cost and the general manager of contract cost department and was
responsible for its contract cost control and sourcing management. From
August 1996 to June 2002, Ms. Mi successively worked at branches of
China Construction Bank Corporation (FRBIZ L ERTTIRHB BRAF]) in

Bengbu and Anging city, Anhui Province.

Ms. Ml obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering from
Anhui Institute of Architecture and Industry (Z &35 T 2 E7) (now
known as Anhui Jianzhu University (ZZBEZE K 2)) in the PRC in July

1996. She also obtained a senior engineering certificate from Fujian
Provincial Personnel Department ({8724 A EE) in August 2007, and
a registered cost engineer from Anhui Provincial Personnel Department

L& ANEEE) in October 2000.
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Mr. LIU Weiping (8/{2 ), aged 41, was appointed as Vice President
since July 2021 and is responsible for funds management and assisting

in financial management of our Group.

Mr. LIU joined our Group in July 2011 as an assistant to general manager
of Southwestern China region, and was successively promoted as the vice
general manager of Nanning city company in January 2015, as a fund
controller of our Group in August 2016, and as our financial controller
and fund controller in July 2017. Prior to joining our Group, from April
2005 to April 2008, Mr. LIU served as assistant to general manager of
fund department in Fuxin Group, where he was primarily responsible
for its financing management. From April 2008 to July 2011, Mr. LIU
served as an assistant to the office of board of directors of Fuxin Group.

Mr. LIU obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Liaoning
University of Petroleurn and Chemical Technology (& 2 A jii{t T A E)
in the PRCin July 2002, and a master’s degree in economics from Xiamen
University (BEFFAZE) in the PRC in June 2005. Mr. LIU obtained an
economist certificate from Xiamen Civil Service Bureau in February 2009.

Mr. Fu Mingjun (f$833&), aged 41, joined our Group in February 2021
as the vice president. He graduated from Peking University in June 2004
with a double bachelor's degree in advertising and communication from
the School of Journalism and Communication and CCER economics.

He joined the headquarter of Poly Real Estate immediately after
graduation. From 2006 to 2017, Mr. Fu served as the senior executive
regional companies of Poly Real Estate Group in Chongging, Anhui and
Shaanxi as well as the head of group brand marketing. From 2018 to
January 2021, Mr. Fu served as a marketing executive of China SCE Group,

Aoyuan Commercial Group and other companies.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. TANG Guozhong (EEl#E), aged 47, was appointed as one of
our joint company secretaries on 11 November 2019. See “— Board of
Directors” above for more details.

Ms. CHEE Charlotte (f1B{7) was appointed as one of our joint
company secretaries on 30 November 2021. Ms. Chee is a senior manager
of the Corporate Services division of Tricor Services Limited. She has over
9 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been
providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies
as well as multinational, private and offshore companies.
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Ms. Chee is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional
and an associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Chee holds a degree of
Master of Science in Corporate Governance and Compliance from Hong
Kong Baptist University.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Our Directors and members of our senior management receive
compensation from our Group in the form of fees, salary and benefit,
housing allowance and contribution to a retirement benefit scheme and
share-based compensation.

Our Board will review and determine the remuneration and compensation
packages of our Directors and senior management and will, following
the Listing, receive recommendation from the remuneration committee
which will take into account salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of our Directors and performance

of our Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwc

To the Shareholders of Datang Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Datang Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 127 to 275, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
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Key Audit Matter
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Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

Refer to note 4 “Critical accounting estimates and judgements”,
note 21 “Properties under development” and note 22 “Completed

properties held for sale” to the consolidated financial statements.

The properties under development (‘PUD") and completed properties
held for sale (“PHS") of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB28,332 million and approximately RMB3,022 million respectively
as at 31 December 2021, which in total accounted for approximately
51% of the Group's total assets. The carrying amounts of PUD and PHS
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV"). Write-
downs of PUD and PHS to NRV during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately RMB290 million.

Management assessed the NRV based on existing selling and
development plans, and a forecast of future selling price with
reference to the current market price of properties of comparable
type, size and location. The determination of NRV involved critical
accounting estimates on the selling prices, selling expenses necessary
to make the sale and, for PUD, the estimated costs of completion.

We focused on auditing the assessment of NRV because the total
balance of PUD and PHS is significant and the estimation of NRV is
subject to a high degree of estimation uncertainty. Therefore, the
assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS is considered a key audit matter.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

For assessment of NRV, we assessed the inherent risk of material ~ FAAIEIRFEFEM S @ £EBHITETERRE REME
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty — ARBEZKTF @ HAHMEERERRANEERR - WHIT
and level of other inherent risk factors, and performed audit procedures LA NE&T2fF ¢

as follows:

()  Understood, evaluated and validated, on a sample basis, the () T * FFEMEABMEN I RABREEEEETUE

BFHERRIZ A ERE R

relevant internal control procedures over the Group’s process
in determining the NRV;

RAMEN TN SHABEREPYERBIELEN
ERTYENEREELEETEERN E—FEFELHOA
SR FEMETEANGHEERETLER - U
BENEREEERE R FENENAEL &

(i) Compared the actual selling prices of the relevant PUD and PHS, (i)
on a sample basis, against the estimated selling prices used
in the management’s NRV assessment made in the prior year
to reconsider, with hindsight, the reliability of management's
historical NRV assessment;

FRBENSN - AREEENBRMET - AR

(i)  Tested management's key accounting estimates, on a sample (i)
basis, for:

Selling prices — we compared the estimated selling price
to recent transactions by making reference to the Group’s
selling price of pre-sold units or the prevailing market price
of comparable properties with comparable type, size and
location.

Selling expenses — we compared the estimated selling
expenses to selling price percentage with the actual
average selling expenses to revenue ratio of the Group
in recent years.

Estimated costs of completion for PUD — we reconciled
the estimated costs of completion to the budget and
examined the related construction contracts or compared
the anticipated completion costs to the actual costs of
similar type of completed properties of the Group.

We found the key accounting estimates used in the assessment of NRV

of PUD and PHS were supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Siu Cheong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Year ended 31 December

HZ128318LLEE
2021 2020

20216 2020%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BT AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue BA 6 11,254,171 10,588,379
Cost of sales HERAR 7 (8,554,974) (7,892,454)
Gross profit N 2,699,197 2,695,925
Selling and marketing costs HERBHEAX 7 (528,925) (482,694)
Administrative expenses T‘I@lﬁ'ﬁi ) \ 7 (705,654) (522,226)
Net impairment (losses)/reversal of impairment on £ EREKBERE
financial and contract assets (F518),/REREFE 312 (63,160) 7918
Other income Hi e A 9 39,674 42,057
Other expenses HiF® -~ 10 (13,750) (11,763)
Other gains - net Hith ez — %58 1 192,973 51,543
Operating profit R 1,620,355 1,780,960
Finance income REKA 12 33,470 28,799
Finance costs RIE A 12 (81,586) (48,374)
Finance costs — net BMERA—FE (48,116) (19,575)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates DMEEEEERMEATER 20 136,203 (45,730)
Profit before income tax Fﬁfgfﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ 1,708,442 1,715,655
Income tax expenses FTiSBiA X 13 (682,668) (765,706)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRBAREZEWSEE
for the year 1,025,774 949,949
Profit and total comprehemsive income T AL BAERRR 2 E R -
attributable to: B
— Owners of the Company . YNCIE 2PN 726,438 715372
- Non-controlling interests — IR 299,336 234,577
1,025,774 949,949
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FRAREABGERNG
owners of the Company (expressed in RMB BREN(UEBRARYETIIR)
per share)
Basic B 14 0.53 0.70
Diluted e 14 0.50 0.65

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should 434 2 E IR ES 5 FE BB MY s — T8 -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BT AR T ARETTT
Assets BE )
Non-current assets 'a'F)?ﬁEJJﬁE
Property, plant and equipment ES Ffﬁ%&&ﬁ 15 727,041 741,255
Investment properties R R/ES 16 1,399,540 1,566,730
Intangible assets B AE 17 10,808 15310
Right-of-use assets ﬁ%%ﬁ% ) 18 148,369 169,640
Investments accounted for using the equity method DMEE)%\]\EEE’\]&Q 20 5,664,959 4,768,998
Properties under development R o 21 - 14,140
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss E@ﬁﬁﬁfz\?‘ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ = 217,841
Deferred income tax assets EREFBEHERE 33 776,644 804,192
8,727,361 8,298,106
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE ) 21,437 1,214
Properties under development GERN/ES \ 21 28,332,047 23,429,576
Completed properties held for sale BIELENSRIME 22 3,021,622 2134716
Contract assets and contract acquisition costs BHEENAOBREKRA 23 851,607 438,332
Trade and other receivables 2 5 M EAOEUGRIR 25 14,106,901 6,721,652
Prepaid income taxes ﬁﬁpﬁﬁ‘@? 26 528,104 571,369
Cash and bank deposits e RBITHFER 27 5,509,422 5,660,333
52,371,140 38,957,192
Total assets EELE 61,098,501 47,255,298
Equity &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ESACIE 2PN £
Share capital R . 28 89,164 87,216
Share premium W fn (B 28 1,645,296 1,677,903
Other reserves Hfth s 29 1,364,134 1,147,588
Retained earnings RERF 2,524,168 1,987,465
5,622,762 4,900,172
Non-controlling interests FERER 37 4,582,225 3,021,806
Total equity EREE 10,204,987 7,921,978
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As at 31 December
R12H31H

2021 2020
20215 20205
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Bz ARETT AREF T
Liabilities =i |
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Borrowings B 3] 6,962,536 7,647,463
Lease liabilities BEAE 32 120,824 133,954
Deferred income tax liabilities BEREHAE 33 1,300,365 1,217,226
8,383,725 8,098,643
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 5 RHEMENFR 30 18,884,058 14,581,655
Contract liabilities BHEE 24 18,421,640 11,694,527
Borrowings fER 31 3,817,631 2,666,675
Lease liabilities HEEE } 32 12,207 9,256
Current income tax liabilities BIEFERaE 1,374,253 1,382,564
42,509,789 30,334,677
Total liabilities BEHE 50,893,514 39,333,320
Total equity and liabilities Bk EEEE 61,098,501 47,255,298
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction — F#ll4RE B E B E R EEBEN M E—HFHIE -

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 127 to 275 were approved by the 551272758 BB MK M 202243 A30HEE =2 #t

Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. HERE o
Mr. Wu Di Mr. Hao Shengchun
RiExE MEEFLE
Director Director

2 0
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Attributable to owners of the Company

VNG PN 1
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
caEgitaI Eéemium reserves earnin%s Total interests eq#%i%
A f&E At REEA A% ERER B&
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

fE  ARETT ARETn  ARETr ARETn  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR
éNote ) (Note 28) (Note 29)
Bizks) (Bitos) (Fk9)

Balance at 1 January 2020 202081 518 28 10 50642 RS 161025 2878 W 308409
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit o the year ERat] - - - 715372 715372 45T 949949
Transactions with owners HEEANRA
Share issued in Public Offering LREERETRD 20) 21806 1277753 - - 1,299,559 - 1299559
Capltalsation Issue BXfaT 28(b) 65340 (65,340 - - - - -
Share issuance costs for Public Offering DR EE 7 RAZIMA - (4295) - - (4295 - (4295)
Contributions from & fellow subsidiary FZMBARFE - - 2606 - 2606 - 22606
Employee share schemes - value of  EERR(A5HEl - BERBEE

employee services - - 28405 - 28405 - 28405
Capitalinjections from non-controlling JEFEMER T &

interests - - - - - 2506018 2,506,018
Disposals of interests in subsidiaries (&K BARER MU AR

without loss of control PEiE - - - - - 73,500 73,500
Appropriation of statutory reserves BT AT R 29(3) - - 338132 (338,132) - - -

87,146 1169461 389,143 (338,132) 1307618 2,580,118 3,887,736

Balance at 31 December 2020 2020512831 H 28 8716 1677903 1,147,588 1,987,465 4900172 3021806 791978
Balance at 1 January 2021 RonE1 B 1B 2 E8 87,216 1,677,903 1,147,588 1,987,465 4,900,172 3,021,806 7921978
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year R - - - 726,438 726,438 299,336 1,025,774
Transactions with owners HREANRS
Issuance of ordinary shares ¥Rk 2800 1,948 117,383 - - 119,331 - 119,331
Capital injection from non-controlling SRR IELS T &

interests - - - - - 665,270 665,270
Acquisition of subsidiaries YEHBAT 38a) - = = - - 1,071,506 1,071,506
Acquisiton of interests in subsiciaries B 7EF2RER

from non-controlling interests HBLAER 37(a) - - (3,745) - (3,745) (146,295 (150,040)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHELA 38(6) - - - - - (329,398) (329,398)
Dividends k& 40 - (149,990) - - (149,990) - (149,990)
Appropriation of statutory reserves  BTETE 290) - - 189,735 (189,735) - - -
Employee share schemes-value o EER (52| -EERBERE

employee services 8 - - 30,556 - 30,556 = 30,556

1,948 (32,607) 216,546 (189,735) (3,848) 1,261,083 1,257,235

Balance at 31 December 2021 R01E12B31 B2 &R 89,164 1,645,296 1,364,134 2,524,168 5,622,762 4,582,225 10,204,987

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — _EilARE Rz B B 5K fE BAREFT T 5 —OFBIRE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021

20215
Note RMB’000
BizE ARETR

Cash flows from operating activities

REEZBHRERE

ARETT

2020
20204
RMB000

Cash generated/(used in) from operations "ERE/ (FB) B 34(a) 3,000,769 (1,241,943)
Income tax paid ERETEH (593,396) (370,180)
Interest paid BRI (1,475,547 (886,451)
Net cash generated/(used in) from operations RETEFE/ (TH) BLFE 931,826 (2,498,574)
Cash flows from investing activities REEHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BER&E (85,957) (84,286)
Purchases of intangible assets BERVEE (829) (4,523)
Payments for construction of investment properties RBYERETR 16 (627) (2465)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment  HE¥% « BB KR RIRENE

and investment properties FTS5UR 34(d) 163,771 35,585
Investments in joint ventures REELENERE (329,797) (1,380,430)
Investments in associates REE N AN E (875,884) (1,585,495)
Advances to joint ventures and associates AEERERBERRARR (7,484,835) (3,836,654)
Repayments from joint ventures and associates REAELERBEARNER 5,629,806 5,649,048
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net of cashand ~ HEHKB A RIFEHIE

cash equivalent disposed of (M HERE RRSEEN) 38(b) 135,613 159,180
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEHE N EFTE A 361,432 -
Proceeds from de-registration of associates FHEBE N RS = 9,486
Decrease in term deposits with original maturities over — REEAR A= 18 A M L ME BE R

three months B 567 2,183
Payments for financial assets at fair value through profit ~ BRAR B ANEZHNEBEENNR

or loss - (110,741)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value HERRAEFABENSREEN

through profit or loss e 185,973 110,741
Interest received M E 33,470 28,799
Net cash acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARMERSFE 38(a) 835,588 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARSFE (1,431,709) (1,009,572)

,

\
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ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Lz N S ARETT

Cash flows from financing activities BREETHRERE
Issue of shares BT 28 119,331 1,299,559
Dividends paid BARE 40 (149,990) -
Proceeds from borrowings 1ﬁihﬁﬂ§f#\ 7,883,310 4210939
Repayments of borrowings BEEN (8,157,396) (1,667,246)
Advances from non-controlling interests and entities REFEER R Rt R AR R AR R

controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder EHNEROBN 4,703,682 1,416,043
Repayments to non-controlling interests and entities MR ER R B FEERRR

controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder EHMEENER (3,587,010) (1,505,698)
Share issuance costs RIDEATRA - (33,985)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash other than XBHERE (RRESMEN

quarantee deposits for construction of pre-sale BREEBRIN) B/ (E)

properties 213,119 (17,720)
Contribution from a fellow subsidiary RZENBLAEE - 9,987
Capital injections from non-controlling interests FERERTE 447,725 986,316
Payments for acquisition of interests in subsidiaries from B 3EERRAX B URERI B 2 Al#R 2 1438

non-controlling interest 37(a) (103,000) -
Principal elements of lease payments HEMTHELHH (21,184) (15,346)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries without loss of HERB AR MY ELLTHERSG

control A = 73,500
Net cash generated from financing activities METBAEREFHE 1,348,587 4,756,349
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEMEMTE 848,704 1,248,203
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FIReRREEEY 3,462,789 2,214,161
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash RekReERNERZHTE

equivalents (1,065) 425
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXBRERELEEY 27 4,310,428 3,462,789

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _EHl4RE IR & =K EEREN M —OFBIE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Datang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 14 December 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961 consolidated and revised). The address of the
Company's registered office and the principal place of business
are respectively located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and Block
1, Honggiao Jiahui, Lane 928, Shenhong Road, Minhang District,
Shanghai, China.

The Company is engaged in investment holding. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are primarily engaged
in property development business in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). The ultimate holding company of the Company
is Good First Holding Limited (“Good First”) which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and controlled by Ms. Wong Hei,
the ultimate controlling shareholder (the “Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”).

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) since
11 December 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 30 March 2022.

The outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") had
brought unprecedented challenges and added uncertainties to
the economy. COVID-19 may affect the financial performance
and position of the Group including the revenue from property
development and sales, fair value of investment properties,
allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables
and so on. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group kept
continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19 outbreak
and reacted actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. As at the date that the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue, COVID-19 does not
have any material adverse impact on the financial position and
operating result of the Group.

SmEMBHRERME

—REH

REEEZERERAB (AR DRE1961FE
3FEDI (AR A RIEFT) B 28 RBNEIN2018
FNRAMBEHRSHEEMK L REREERA
A o ARRIGEMFERMIE & EZ LMD
I FAWindward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands X 4 Bl _E
BT RITTIE AU BRO28F UTIB = B 1574 -

RATREREZER - AR REWE QR (5
BIAEBDEZERNFEAREME(HE])
NEMERBER - NRRZREZERRRA
Good First Holding Limited ([Good First]) » 822
ARNABEXAES([RBEXES )Mk
FR A A AR AR R ([ B AR AR BR | ) S L - T i
il o

AARMRMDBE2020F 12 AN BREBBHAR S
FraR AR EBBRH]) £ o

BRBERPI  BREATBERERUAARBTAR
25 - ZEHRE T B mETN202293 308
EEESHETIE -

2019 %1 & 7% & & fm ([ COVID-19]) A9 18 5 55 2k
RIFTABRBKE - EMTEENTHETE -
COVID-198k B B AR L BN BRI LKA - B
EUEREREERAN - BREMELIRE B
SREMEBGRIBEEREEEEREES - AR
COVID-19H)/& % - REBIFER FCOVID-19%1F
BB+ I TR AR FE ) E N & B BT SRR R AR
BEBENTE - NREMEHRRERETER
B+ COVID- 1930 M 35 7R £2 [ 1) B A5 iR 00 IR 48 i 3
BERERERTHFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies

adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the

years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements

are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which are carried at
fair value.

Going concern basis

Due to the volatility of the property market in the
PRC and the unfavourable impact on the presale
performance during the year and subsequent to the
balance sheet date, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern for at least twelve months from 31 December
2021. Management has taken into consideration a
number of plan and measures, including but not
limited to the followings:

FEETHBORBE

AR E— RN REZ T A M RRER
MHEREEBER - RIEXEHB - ZFHR
EERERRABRIFE - AREMBEHRRE
BARBREMBERR -

21 REEE
() FEBEEBHBHREER ([ FELH
BHEER ) REE L aFH
REBEGRE P BEHRETIIRIBER ST
HEBIRBEB R AEHIE622E K
WEHATERR -

(b) FELREARE
REMBHRERIIERLN AN ERE
MR E Y ERIEA R EFFABR([1E
AREFABE DN ERMEERAR
B3I BRBRAN ©

(c) FERERE

FR A FR B 5 2 T 45 B 855 9 F I A
BEBEXRBEBEEXEN T
2 RITEAEEEEE RIS
BIREEE2021F12A31BEED12
EARNFELER  AARESZEE
BEZERAEENRREBES KRR
RAEGHRENRR - EBEEZER
ZIEtE| R A - BIEERERRIA
T&IE :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHBEHME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE(E)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued) (c) FELEREE)

D)

iii)

The Group will continue to implement
measures to accelerate the pre-sales and
sales of its properties under development and
completed properties held for sale, and to
speed up the collection of sales proceeds and
other receivables;

The Group is actively seeking for new debt
financing and bank borrowings at costs
acceptable to the Group to finance the
settlement of its existing financial obligations
and future operating and capital expenditures;

The Group does not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 December 2021 (note
36). The Group will not commit on significant
capital expenditures and land acquisitions
before securing the necessary funding;

i)

iii)

7N £2 B % Al AR BR R HE B AN PR TR
ERHEERERTMERE T
PR - 3 pnR YR B 85 E PR 1S
TR N B e W FROR

AEEEEZASEAZRZH
RATERS KN EBE